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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Mary Ann Cooney FAX: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Associate Commissioner

July 7, 2015
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan -
S?:ti tniul-slc;norable Council P\éwac:h a
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 —
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services to enter into retroactive agreements with the vendors listed below for the
provision of Emergency Solutions Grant services in an amount not to exceed $627,176,
effective retroactive to July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, upon Governor and Executive
Council approval. 100% Federal Funding.

Vendor Vendor Address Amount
Number

The Bridge House 165288-B001 | 260 Highland Street $78,728
Plymouth, NH 03264

Community Action Partnership of 177200-B004 | 642 Central Avenue $78,175

Strafford County Dover, NH 03820

Easter Seals of New Hampshire 177204 555 Auburn Street $79,011
Manchester, NH 03103

Southern New Hampshire Services 177198-B006 | 40 Pine Street $75,256
Manchester, NH 03103

Southwestern Community Services 177511-P001 | 63 Community Way $79,011

Cheshire County Keene, NH

Southwestern Community Services 177511-P001 | 96 Main Street $79,011

Sullivan County Claremont, NH 03743

The Front Door Agency 156244-B001 | 7 Concord Street $78,973
Nashua, NH 03064

Tri-County Community Action 177195 30 Exchange Street $79,011

Program Berlin, NH 03570

Total: | $627,176

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year
2016 pending legislative approval of the next biennial budget.

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731

Fiscal Year Class Title Amount
2016 102-500731 | Contract for Program Svcs. $627,176
Total: $627,176




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary moozzmﬂmzmﬁ

Emergency Solutions Grant _uqomqm_s # 16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-03

3,

*4

*10.

11.

**12.

RFP Name RFP Number Reviewer Names

Y

" Amanda Lewis (now Tech)

Bidder Name . _smx_._s um >om:n_ 2.
Pass/Fail Points Points Bob O'Connell - Cost
- Bridge House 230 154 3 Melissa Hatfield - Tech
* CAP Strafford County 230 202 4- Michele Harlan - Tech
Easter Seals NH 230 198 5. Susan Ford - (now Cost)
" Greater Nashua MH Center 230 176 6.
 Isaiah 58 230 0 7.
" New Generation 230 0 8.
" Southern NH Services 230 204 9.
" Southwestern Community Services Cheshire Co. 230 202
* Southwestern Community Services Sullivan Co. 230 202
The Front Door Agency 230 178
Tri-County CAP 230 136
Veterans Inc. 230 197

*The Front Door Agency and Greater Nashua MH Center bid on same region , The Front Door Agency was awarded the bid due to a higher score
** Easter Seals of NH and Veterans Inc. bid on the same region, Easter Seals NH was awarded the bide due to a higher score
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2  State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
260 Highland Street
The Bridge House Plymouth, NH 03264
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number
603-536-7631 05-95-42-423010-7927-102- June 30, 2016 $78,728
500731
19 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin, Director (603) 271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
1/7%( 4 O&Z\b‘mw o N\ ExeenvivE |l )e/,-amfz
. owledgement: State of )} H , County of G dton Brioce o yse—

On ‘;u;"j_, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary P li tice of t
{gnature otary ub or Justice 0 he Peace HOLLY J. CORMIEA

(L Notary Public « New Hampshire
D d% My Commission Expires Noverers 2. 251~

e i We

[Seal]

1.13.2 Name nnd Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

‘HO“\S Cormue &

1.15  Name and Title of §tate Agency Signatory
1

Aﬁ(j@m y

1.14  State Agency Signa

116  Apprayal by th¢ N.H. Depa((y«t of Administration, Divisioh of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

Mighe Aeols O 7(zt / S

1.18  Approval by tltjovernor and Executive Courlcil'

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (*Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement, This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: [ |
Date:



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defauit
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days afier the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials:
Date:




certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: 4 .
Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to business
days.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals and families in the North Country
area, Grafton County and Lakes Region area who are homeless or at risk of becoming
homeless in accordance with 24CFR Parts 91 and 576, with priority given to veterans
and families with children, in accordance with the NH Consolidated Plan 2011-2015.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall determine Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) eligibility for
individuals identified in Section 1.2, which includes but is not limited to:

2.1.1. Determining individual and family income eligibility in accordance with U.S.
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regulations for ESG, in accordance with
24 CFR 576. Income eligibility must be assessed every 6 months of program
participation. The Contractor shall ensure annual income:

2.1.1.1. Includes all earned and unearned income from all sources that go to
any family member.

2.1.1.2. Is calculated by annualizing current income to determine projected
annual income.

2.1.1.3. Is adjusted according participant income increases/decreases. The
Contractor shall ensure all prevention participant households report all
income changes within 30 days of the change occurring.

2.1.2. Documenting eligibility for households applying for Rapid Re-Housing and
Homelessness Prevention services according to HUD guidelines, which includes
but is not limited to collecting and documenting information regarding:

21.21. Immediate risks/crisis to individuals and families applying for
assistance to detemine if steps are needed to avert physical or
psychological danger or threat of immediate housing loss.

2.1.2.2. Basic demographic and contact information, which includes but is not
limited to name, age, dependents, other family, current location,
contact phone numbers and address.

2.1.2.3. Problems as defined by participants that affect housing, such as late
rent, landlord problems, credit history, criminal history, employment
and income.

2.1.2.4. Solutions as defined by what the participant wants or requests from
what is available to him/her.

TE.:;II;T:O‘ House Contractor Inttials 4] é ~—
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

2.2.

23.

24.

2.1.2.5. Eligibility information, including but not limited to, verification of literal
homelessness or imminent risk of homeless. Documentation must be
in accordance with HUD'’s preferred method of verification as noted in
24 CFR 576.

2.1.2.6. Additional risks and vulnerabilities for prioritizing purposes, which
include, but are not limited to, severe rent burdens, domestic violence,
prior incarceration or institutionalization, health and mental health
issues, substance abuse, and other specific housing retention
barriers.

2.1.2.7. Wrtten third-party verification of rental arrearages, notices of eviction,
homelessness, or utility shutoff notices.

The Contractor shall conduct Housing Relocation and Stabilization (HRS) activities,
which includes but is not limited to inspecting each unit to ensure housing meets HUD
Habitability Standards, using HUD’s Checklist for Habitability Standards. Additionally,
the Contractor shall ensure:

2.2.1. Occupied housing meets State and local housing requirements including, but not
limited to, compliance with:

2.2.1.1.  All applicable state and local housing codes.

2.2.1.2. Licensing requirements.

2.2.1.3.  All requirements regarding the condition of the structure.

2.2.1.4. Al requirements regarding the operation of the housing or services.

2.2.2. Occupied housing shall meet the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention and
Disclosure Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846), the Residential Lead Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C.4851-4856), and implementing regulations in
CFR part 35, subparts A, B, H, J, K, M, and R.

The Contractor shall provide financial assistance to eligible individuals identified in
Section 2.1, for services that include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Rental application fees.

2.3.2. Security deposits.

2.3.3. Utility deposits and payments.
2.3.4. Last month’s rent.

2.3.5. Moving costs.

The Contractor shall provide eligible individuals and families with Tenant-Based Rental
Assistance (TBRA), which includes but is not limited to:

2.4.1. A maximum amount of $3,000 in rental assistance to be applied toward monthly
rent and/or rental arrearages.

2.4.2. Rental assistance over no more than a 6 month period. The Contractor shall:

24.2.1. Enter into a rental assistance agreement with the owner/landlord on
behalf of the program participant, ensuring that the Contractor

The Bridge House C Initials ()//6

Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

receives a copy of all general notices, complaints, and notices of
eviction from the landlord/owner.

2.4.22. Ensure each program participant obtains a written lease for the rental
unit, unless the assistance provided is solely for rental arrears.

24.2.3. Provide rental and all forms of financial assistance directly to the
landlord, utility or other third-party on behalf of the participant.

2424 Ensure that rental assistance does not exceed the Fair Market Rent
established by HUD, as provided under 24 CFR part 888.

24.25. Ensure rental units comply with HUD's standard of rent
reasonableness, as established in 24 CFR 982.507.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide eligible individuals and families with housing stability case
management. Eligible services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR
576.105, which includes but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Developing Housing Budget Plans for all eligible individuals using the information
identified in Section 2.1.3 to ensure participants have the ability to sustain the
cost of the housing on a long-term basis once the assistance or subsidy ends.

2.5.2. Assess, arrange, coordinate and monitor the delivery of individualized services to
facilitate housing stability for program participants who reside in permanent
housing, or assist a program participant in overcoming immediate barriers to
obtaining housing

2.6. The Contractor shall make available on-going housing stability case management for
six (6) months after rental assistance has ended.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure sufficient licensed staff to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Projects
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy (http://www.nh-
hmis.orq).

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The contractor shall provide quarterly reports using HMIS data which include, number
of entries into RRH, Prevention and related costs for all services by the 10th day
following the end of the quarter.

4. Deliverables of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide housing stabilization case management to a minimum of
six (6) households.

4.2. The Contractor shall successfully and rapidly re-house six (6) households in safe and
sustained housing.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure all client level data in Section 2.7 is entered into NH HMIS
within five (5) days of the client’s entry into the program.

The Bridge House Contractor Initials [
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds: 100%

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Amount: $78,728

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for Rapid Re-Housing, Homelessness Prevention and Housing Stabilization
utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed $78,728.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement 2 CFR part 200. Three (3) copies of the
audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of
said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial
report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the
guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with 24 CFR 576 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR
part 200 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines
established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2
CFR part 200.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs including all
costs to the Contractor shall be submitted on a monthly basis by the Contractor for the
amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as

CADHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initi .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

designated by the State which shall be completed and signed by the contractor. The
Contractor shall provide detailed financial expenses information with all payment
requests on a monthly basis.

3.2.1.The Contractor shall submit reimbursement documentation of expenditures of Federal
funds at the time of seeking reimbursement for costs. In no event shall the funds
provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions.
Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the Contractor may invoice for
balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8 based on documentation of
expenditures.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to
date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the
Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which payment has
not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24 CFR
Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

4.1.The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs up to $78,728 as defined by HUD
under the provisions and applicable regulations at 24 CFR 576 and 24 CFR part 91.

4.2 The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract
price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval
from the State.

4.3 Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1 Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any
required non-federal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct
operations of the Contractor.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
“Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or such equivalent system as the
State may require. Requests for payment shall be made according to section 3.2 of this
agreement.

CADHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initisis Lé
Page 2 of 2 5 {
Date /



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Defauit hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the penod of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and orginal evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentlality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Intenim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
alt costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goais and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medicai and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title Vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the foliowing:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

P
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropnation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shaltl fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence
with additional abuse or molestation insurance coverage of not less than $1,000,000
each occurrence; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

/)
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requinng such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check 0 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name% O DG /(é” 57 /A’k/
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: /
&/ (e %”72’ //J’/

// [2//S @W/Q/zf/,aq; éfx)m%%
Ddte” / Name: _. 7
Tile: Sx@Ccs 77 0¥ Llpeseyd £ -

Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials _/ 2 /4 i

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Date 327?4%



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective pﬁmary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a matenal representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligibie,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntanly exciuded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from patrticipation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govermment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
pnncipals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civit judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govermmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: .4 S, 0y //é&&/ /4/4/
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national ongin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: s =, 2, )6 e%a}g///{/&
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227,.Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penaity of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:7&; Ll )4 (;’/\Z/o ﬁse;//l/c;
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care QOperations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA™ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

312014 Exhibit | Contractor nitials_ .S
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I.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials gf/é

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement -
Page 2 of 6 Date%



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer inmediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Secunty Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the dispositior: of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit 1, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SN RWN =

o

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

ContractorName7 7. Bre [ Mg & b er e L)y

T)2/)5~ 4 2%&2 _ Bev )i sl
Date / ame:

Title: £AECLy 77 0B Dotz poser

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials ‘Qé
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

CUMHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date %L&l



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ?gzé %gd <>3

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X__NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor lnitials%
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Jeffrey M. Brown, do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of The Bridge House, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on JYy 2, Zo 15
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,

or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the Z.'ddayofjugl ,2015”.
{Date Contract Signed)

4. Catherine Bentwood is the duly authorized Executive Director of the Agency.

A b

(S re of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of GVM*"CY\

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this a\ day of J U,‘ l'{f 20 l5 )
By YJ/H:FW/U( M. Drown

(Name e¥Elected Officer of the Agen.cy) )M D
NN

" (Notary j@/Justlce of the Peace)

(NOTAKY SEAL) HOLLY J. CORMIEA
Notary Pubtiz - 1:2v Hampshire

T ' My Commiczizn Susirzs 1o cvember 6, 2010
Commission Expires: ]\LDY,U\LbLY (ﬂ, 9@(8 y Lom

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



State of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that The Bridge House, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
February 24, 2004. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, 1 hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1** day of July A.D. 2015

Zy Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




® DATE (MM/DD/
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE r1tra0te

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC
21 Meadowbrook Lane

P O Box 7425

CONTACT pat Mack

[PHONE "~ (£03)293-2791 I Noy; (603) 293-7188

EAlL s.pat@esinsurance. com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Gilford NH 03247-7425 INSURER AMarkel Insurance
INSURED INSURER B Markel Insurance 38970F
The Bridge House, Inc. INSURER C :
260 Highland Street INSURERD :

INSURERE :

Plymouth NH 03264 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:2015 w/abuse & prof REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTAND!NG ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDU CED BY PAID CLAIMS.

NSR ADDL POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE WVD POLICY NUMBER MMIDD/YYYY) | (MMDDIYYYY) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
A | cLams mape @ OCCUR PREMISES (Ea oosumence) | $ 100,000
85025S5266570-10 7/1/2015 7/1/2016 | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | poLiCY FESr Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/IOP AGG | § 1,000,000
OTHER: Abuse and Molestation $ 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMET NED SINGLE LM 1,000,000
A X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ALLSUMED SCHEQULED 100255266571-11 7/1/2015 | 7/1/2016 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
1 NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
Medical payments $ 5,000
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED ] ] RETENTIONS . s
WORKERS COMPENSATION R OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN Starure | [
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 100,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
B |(Mandatory in NH) MWC0037234-03 9/10/2014 | 9/10/2015 | E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 100,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
A |Abuse & Molestation 850285266570-10 7/1/2015 | 7/1/2016 | Occumence/Aggregate $1,000,000
A | Professional 850285266570-10 7/1/2015 7/1/2016 | EachAct $1,000,000 Agg $2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedul

may be attached if more space is required)

Re: Funding

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

reisman@dhhs.state.nh.us

State of NH, Dept of Health & Human Serv
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Pat Mack/PAT ot NA Mo

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 01a0n

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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BRIDGE HOUSE 260 Highland Street Plymouth, New Hampshire 03264 603/536-7631 fax 603536 1175

A Homeless Shelter

Mission of the Bridge House and Veterans Advocacy:
Ending Homelessness in Grafton County one family at a time.

Due to the VA’s commitment to end veterans homelessness Bridge
House is able to offer specialized services for this population.

The Bridge House forte is family strengthening, veteran’s advocacy, and
elder support.



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2014 and 2013
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6A HILLSAVENUE
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX# (603)226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors
The Bridge House, Inc
Plymouth, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statementsThe Bridge House, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation), which comprises the statements of financial position as of June 30,2014 and 2013 and the related
statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentationof these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of thancial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevantto the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal conrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentationof the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material rescts, the financial position
of The Bridge House, Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

yA/ L, o

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
January 15, 2015




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, unrestricted
Cash, restricted
Contracts receivable
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS
Building and improvements
Furnishings and equipment
Total Fixed Assets
Less accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll expenses
Accrued compensated absences
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements

2.

2014 2013
$ 565337 $ 511,881
75,567 :
77,508 14,850
718,412 526,731
892,477 833,680
72,893 70,670
965,370 904,350
(236,844) (207,071)
728,526 697,279
$ 1,446,938 $ 1,224,010
$ 4,547 $ 2,520
7,013 3,108
3,043 2,975
14,603 8,603
656,768 515,407
775,567 700,000
1,432,335 1,215,407
$ 1,446,938 $ 1,224,010




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State and Federal Contracts
Grants

Contributions - Cash

Special Events

Fees

Interest

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Net assets released from donor
imposed restrictions

EXPENSES
Program Services
Management and general

Fundraising

Increase in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of year

Net assets, End of year

TEMPORARILY
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL
$ 185,074 $ - $ 185,074
137,015 116,000 253,015
12,082 50,000 62,082
32,781 - 32,781
11,139 - 11,139
4,779 - 4,779
382,870 166,000 548,870
90,433 (90,433) "
281,392 - 281,392
38,240 - 38,240
12,310 - 12,310
331,942 - 331,942
141,361 75,567 216,928
515,407 700,000 1,215,407
$ 656,768 $ 775,567 $ 1,432,335

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements

-3-



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State and Federal Contracts
Grants

Contributions - Cash

Special Events

Fees
Interest

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Net assets released from donor
imposed restrictions

EXPENSES

Program Services
Management and general

Fundraising

Increase in net assets
Net Assets, Beginning of year

Net assets, End of year

TEMPORARILY
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL
127,137 $ - $ 127,137
92,813 2,000 94,813
55,049 13,581 68,630
11,717 - 11,717
11,165 - 11,165
4,839 - 4,839
302,720 15,581 318,301
15,581 (15,581)
242,183 - 242,183
26,193 - 26,193
13,303 - 13,303
281,679 281,679
36,622 36,622
478,785 700,000 1,178,785
515,407 $ 700,000 $ 1,215,407

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Increse in restricted cash
Change in Deferred revenue net of prior period adjustment
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in Operating Assets
Contracts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Decrease (increase) In Operating Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment

NET INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED CASH

UNRESTRICTED Cash, beginning of year

UNRESTRICTED Cash, end of year

2014 2013
216,928 $ 36,622
(75,567) i

; (104,562)
29,773 22,392
(62,658) 100,312
- 10
2,027 (6,639)
3,905 (1,034)
68 (311)
114,476 46,790
(61,020) (30,758)
53,456 16,032
511,881 495,849
$ 565,337 $ 511,881

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Activities

The Bridge House was incorporated in 2004, under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, as
a “not-for-profit” organization. In accordance with its Mission Statement, the not-for-profit
organization provides shelter and services, including case management, to the homeless
population of the community to help them find and maintain permanent housing. Residents are
provided with services that include budgeting and credit counseling, parenting classes, substance
abuse counseling, and assistance in acquiring additional services from other state and federal
programs.

Significant Accounting Policies

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization is presented to assist in
understanding the Organization’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are
representations of the Organization’s management who is responsible for their integrity and
objectivity. These accounting policies conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Financial Statement Presentation

Basis of Presentation: The Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

Unrestricted net assets are comprised of operating revenues and expenses and

contributions pledged which are not subject to any donor-imposed restrictions.
Unrestricted net assets balances as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled $656,768
and $515,407 respectively.

Temporarily restricted net assets are comprised of contributions and gifts for which
donor-imposed restrictions will be met either by the passage of time or the actions of
the Organization. Temporarily restricted net assets balances as of June 30, 2014 and
2013 totaled $775,567 and $700,000, respectively.

Permanently restricted net assets include those assets for which donor-imposed
restrictions stipulate that the asset be permanently maintained by the Organization.
As of June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Organization had no permanently restricted net
assets.

-6-



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and Equipment

All acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $100 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals, and betterments that materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
capitalized. Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximate
fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using primarily the straight-line
method. Depreciation Expense was $29,773 and $26,975 for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

L
g

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. For the
% years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Organization had no cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S.

Internal Revenue Code. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the
I Organizations tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. In
addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an organization other than a private foundation
under section 509(a)(2).

Pledges (Contracts) Receivable and Recognition of Donor Restricted Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to the
Organization. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions
are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets. Contributions of long-lived assets are considered unrestricted unless the donor
specifies a time-restriction.

The Organization provides for losses on grants and pledges receivable using the allowance
method. The allowance is based on experience, third-party contracts, and other
circumstances, which may affect the ability of donors to meet their obligations. Receivables
are considered impaired if full principal payments are not received in accordance with the
contractual terms. It is the Organization’s policy to charge off uncollectible grants and
pledges receivable when management determines the receivable will not be collected. There
were no balances in the allowance account related to pledges receivable as of June 30, 2014
and 2013 because all amounts were deemed collectable.

7-



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Public Support and Revenue

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor.

Functional Expenses

Functional and administrative expenses have been allocated among program services based
on an analysis of personnel time and space utilized for the related activities.

Compensated Absences

It is the Organization’s policy to permit certain employees to accumulate earned benefit
Time throughout the year which will be paid upon termination

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The contracts receivable allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon management’s
assessment of the credit history with agencies, organizations and individuals having
outstanding balances and current relationships with them. There was no balance in the
allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 2. CONCENTATION OF RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization up to $250,000. At June 30, 2014 and 2013
the Organization had $170,032 and $136,891 in uninsured balance respectively.



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 3. CONCENTRATION IN SUPPORT REVENUE

Government and private sector grants accounted for approximately 79% and 70% of the
Organization’s revenues for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Contributions
accounted for approximately 11% and 14% of the Organization’s revenues for the years ended June
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 4. CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Contracts receivable are comprised primarily of State of New Hampshire, Grafton County and
Town of Plymouth service agreements. In addition a private foundation has pledged support for
the Organization.

NOTE 5. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The Organization received a $700,000 block grant from the Town of Plymouth, NH to assist with
the construction of a new facility during the year ended June 20, 2005. A mortgage deed in the
amount of $670,000 related to this grant has been recorded against the title of the property. The
Organization is required to continue the building’s use as a homeless shelter for a period of twenty
years. In the event of default, the Organization must return the funds or relinquish ownership of
the building to satisfy the restrictions.

Temporarily restricted net assets include the following at June 30:

2014 2013
Town of Plymouth, NH $ 700,000 $ 700,000
Thrift Store Start Up Funding 75,567 -
Net temporarily restricted net assets § 775,567 $ 700,000

NOTE 6. OPERATING LEASE

Effective October 5, 2004, the Organization entered into a lease agreement with Whole Village
Family Resource Center to lease a portion of the Center’s Premises. The term of the lease is for 50
years and expires October 4, 2054. The rent is $1 plus incremental costs, which are defined as snow
removal, repairs, lawn care and landscaping, utility services, water and sewer, insurance and other
incidental costs incurred by the Organization use of the premise. There is no lease expense for the
years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013. Incremental costs of use of the premise are included in
operating expenses and allocated by function.
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 7. TAX EXEMPT STATUS

The Organization is a public charity exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of
the Internal revenue Code. The Organization reports it activities on federal form 990 annual
information return and does not believe it has done anything during the past year that would
jeopardize its tax-exempt status at either the state or Federal level. These filings are subject to
review by the taxing authorities and the federal income tax returns for 2013, 2012, and 2011 are
subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

In accordance with FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, the
Organization is under the opinion that there are no unsustainable positions that have been taken in
regards to federal or state income tax reporting requirements. Accordingly, management is not
aware of any unrecognized tax benefits or liabilities that should be recognized in the accompanying
statements.

NOTE 8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Organization is
required to disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. As of June 30, 2014
and 2013 the Organization had no financial instruments subject to the disclosure requirements. Cash,
contracts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses reported in the statement of financial
position approximate fair values because of the short maturities of those instruments or because of the
fixed rate of interest required to be paid.

NOTE 9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Organization receives money under various state and federal programs. Under the terms of
these programs, the Organization is required to expend the funds within the designated period for
purposes specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures of the funds were found not to have been
made in compliance with the proposal, the Organization might be required to return this portion of
funds to the grantor. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, there were no known disallowed expenditures
and the Organization’s management deems such a contingency unlikely. Accordingly, no
provision has been made for this contingency.

NOTE 10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has considered subsequent events through January 15, 2015, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. At that time, there were no material subsequent events.

-10-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors
The Bridge House, Inc
Plymouth, New Hampshire

Our report on our audit of the basic financial statements of The Bridge House, Inc. as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 our report dated January 15, 2015, which expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements, appears on page one. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The supplementary information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

folhy 5 Arniille, P

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
January 15, 2015
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i THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
l For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

Program Management
Services & General Fundraising Total

Payroll $ 148,850 $ 8,921 $ 7,434 $165,205

I Payroll taxes 14,138 847 706 15,691
Fringe benefits 6,022 361 301 6,684
Total payroll and benefits 169,010 10,129 8,441 187,580
Professional fees 5,795 20,513 - 26,308

I Telephone and internet 2,156 - i 2,156
Office expense 6,666 741 - 7,407
Depreciation 26,796 2,977 - 29,773

Rent 1,250 - 1,960 3,210
Utilities 16,320 1,813 - 18,133

l Common Area Charges 3,317 369 3,685
Maintenance and Repairs 6,522 725 - 7,247
Supplies 3,289 - 1,909 5,198
Vehicle expense 3,837 - 3,837
Travel, Training, and Conferences 2,009 - 2,009
Insurance 16,107 16,107

! Criminal records search 96 96
Direct client services 5,947 - - 5,947

I Website & Marketing 8,762 974 9,735
Miscellaneous 3,514 - 3,514

! TOTAL EXPENSES §$ 281,392 $ 38,240 $ 12,310 $331,942

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

Payroll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Total payroll and benefits

Professional fees
Telephone and internet
Office expense
Depreciation

Rent

Utilities

Common Area Charges
Maintenance and Repairs
Supplies

Vehicle expense

Travel, Training, and Conferences

Insurance

Criminal records search
Direct client services
Website & Marketing
Miscellaneous

Program Management

Services & General Fundraising Total
$ 131,178 $ 7,862 § 6,552 $145,592
10,860 651 542 12,053
9,668 579 483 10,730
151,706 9,092 7,577 168,375
5,556 11,204 16,760
1,503 - - 1,503
3,141 349 3,490
24,278 2,698 - 26,975
1,550 - 3,000 4,550
13,344 1,483 - 14,827
3,317 369 - 3,685
5,540 616 - 6,155
4,275 - 1,756 6,031
4,328 - - 4,328
1,177 - 1,177
12,269 - 12,269
196 - - 196
4,873 - - 4,873
3,452 384 - 3,836
1,679 - 970 2,649
$ 26,193 § 13,303  $281,679

TOTAL EXPENSES § 242,183

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements

-13-



BRIDGE HOUSE SHELTER AND VETERANS ADVOCACY

260 HIGHLAND STREET PLYMOUTH, NH 03264

NAME POSITION ADDRESS 1 PHONE E-MAIL
Jeff Brown President , | iy O
Finance Deuinice
Realtor ST N .
, | oe. )
Vice President | jmnpane | GOUNNNITS | S
Brett Miller Development | .
Veteran & r
Police Officer
Kathleen Secretary )
Norris Development = - ]
PSU Grad.
Dept., PHD
Flora Boyce Treasurer - L ]
o ——
S —
Banking
Barbara Development - — _Jr
Maciejewski iy
e
-—v
Steve Flynn Govemnance & D | S
PSU Grad. Nominating
Dept., PHD -
Kim Giles Development " L ——— . )
MSW - ——nd '

Director: Catherine Bentwood, RN
603 536-7631 bridgehouseinc@gmail.com
House Manager: Holly Cormiea 254-9848
November 10, 2014
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Qualifications:
Leadership experience with three non-profit agencies
N H Registered Nurse License# 034589-21
Proven record of building partnerships, collaborative networking
Skilled in physical/mental health care and patient education

Employment:

Jan 2009 -  Executive Director Bridge House Homeless Shelter
present

1989-2008  Patient advocate/evaluator/minor-op assistant general surgery office
1979-1987 Owner/developer Bodyworks Plymouth, NH
Planning and delivery full service health fitness for all ages

Researched/designed ongoing training for all instructors
Organized/designed all New England professional development workshop

1966-1973  St. Elizabeth’s Hospital, Boston, MA — ICU

NE Deaconess, Boston, MA -ICU

South Coast Hospital, Laguna Beach, CA- M&S

Registered Nurse, Roosevelt Hospital School of Nursing, NYC
AWARDS

2012 New Hampshire Charitable Foundation Lakes Region Leadership Award for work on
ending homelessness for veterans

2012 Granite State Service Award
2009 Chamber of Commerce/ James C Hobart Award
2001 Robert Craft/New England Patriots Community Champion Award — Co Recipient

1998 Rotary Citizen of the Year Award — Co Recipient
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Volunteerism and Related experience:

2014 to present North Country Veteran’s Center Committee Board Member
2014 to present NH Charitable Foundation Board Member

BRIDGEHOUSE SHELTER

2010 - Initiated local collaboration to provide housing for homeless veterans.
2011 — 6" Annual Community Family Fun Fair

2011 — Third annual state wide “Directors’ Unplugged” brainstorm

2009 - Lead BH “Green” Initiative

2008 - Talked Nick Mathis into invigorating The Teaching Gardens, now a town wide sustainable
project
2008 - Bridge House Board of Directors since 2001

NH PEACE ACTION

2011 - Development team member since 1999
1999 - Facilitated ongoing partnership between NHPA and NH businessman Alex Ray

PLYMOUTH REGIONAL FREE CLINIC

1997 — present: Volunteer on a rotating basis as clinic RN
2004 — present: VP Board of Directors
Refer/advocate for underserved patients

CASAVOLUNTEER

2000-2002

Court Appointed Special Advocate for children at risk

LICENSED NH FOSTER PARENT

1975-2006

Additionally, sponsored families from Vietnam, Rwanda, Honduras
WORLD PEACE INITIATIVE
2010 — January & June member of volunteer team serving in Haiti

2005 - Pitched in post Katrina in Louisiana with Alex Ray

1999 Delivered medicine/served as anti-sanction witness on international delegation, Baghdad, Iraq

[}
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Using my skills to end the cycle of homelessness for each person who enters Bridge
House Inc.

Trainings:
CPI certification (Ryan Barber) 2015
Bridges Out Of Poverty (Judge Prudence Pease) 2014
Choice Therapy (Jay Apicelli) 2014
NH Conference On Homelessness 2014
Smoke Cessation (DHHS) 2014
Safety Seeking (Jen Stone) 2014
NH Housing Coalition Conference (NHHA) 2014
Professional Development (Kim Giles MSW) 2013
Lizard Brain (Shirley Bemis) 2013
NH/VT Homeless Veterans Conference (2013)
Motivational Interviewing (Jane) 2013
Experience: '
Bridge House Inc.(Plymouth Family/Veteran Shelter)

260 Highland Street. Plymouth NH 03264 (603) 5367631
2000-present: Current Responsibilities-House Supervisor/ Case
Advocate/Budgeting/ Employment & Housing Specialist: Responsibilities-emergency
intake and intervention. Secure participants safety & security within Bridge House.
Medication supervision. Daily enforcement of rules & regulations. Positive interactions
with participants on daily basis, consisting of welcoming socialization & encouraging
guidance. Documentation & reporting to superiors daily. Complete background checks
& refer clients to other service to aid them & family. Assure that budget is being
implemented & followed through with weekly. Finding safe & secure long-term housing
& employment opportunities. Consistently providing outreach to participants (present &
past)

Hunter School (Therapeutic Boarding School)
768 Doe Town Rd. Rumney NH 03266 (603) 7862283
2010-present: Teacher Aide/ House Parent/ Crisis Intervention Counselor

Lakes Region Community Service Council (LRCSC)
Tenny Mountain Highway. Plymouth NH 03264 (603) 5364999
2004-2009 Direct Support Professional/ PSU Crew Supervisor

Experience:
1997-2000 Plymouth State University: Bachelor of Science Social Work (BSW)
2001 Internship (485hrs) Plymouth Regional Senior Center: Supervisor Karen Starks
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Objective:  To advocate on behalf of area’s population experiencing homelessness: To assist
people in the community maintain housing stability: To advocate for children at risk

Experience: 2003 - Present (2015)  The Bridge House Plymouth NH
Manager Responsibilities:

e Welfare Officer — part time

e PATH Official for Grafton County (southern tier)

¢ Manage daily operation of 20 bed homeless shelter

¢ Handle all aspects of plant operation, purchasing, and maintenance
¢ Integrate services with other area providers

e Works in conjunction with ED and rest of staff

1998- Present  Lakes Region Community Service Council Plymouth NH

' Direct Support Provider

e Developed a program activities

e Complete daily monthly reports

¢ Participating individual service agreements
e Assist with activities of daily living

¢ Consumer employment support

Education, Training, & Accomplishments

e CPR - and all other required staff development programs
¢ Medication Administration per HeM - 1201
e Reality Therapy & Choice Therapy
e Defensive Driving
e HMIS Administrator
¢ Community Outreach
e Community Integration
e Child Advocate
Very proud single parent of three wonderful sons

w
w
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OBJECTIVE

To work as a case manager or advocate in the daily administration of operations of a
non profit organization as a self motivated employee with dynamic management skills,
who has the ability to think “outside the box”, paying meticulous attention to detail and
thriving in a fast pace work environment. Objective strengths include excellent
promotional skills and procurement of financial success for an organization.

SUMMARY of QUALIFICATIONS

Able to work independently, strong ability to communicate both verbally and in writing.
Troubleshooter who can rectify situations effectively with tact and diplomacy. Able to
supervise and motivate employees within the work environment. Management
experience that includes inspiring and empowering others, marketing, budgeting, daily
operations, event planning and community awareness.

COMMUNITY & PROFESSIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Created & implemented Job Find Program for DSS juvenile offenders, Alexandria, VA &
a successful Mentoring Program for the Durant, MS CSD providing 32 elementary age
children with high school mentors to assist with afternoon activities & tutoring to prevent
latch key situations. Employment history includes management positions supervising 40
plus employees, overseeing the daily operation of 600 room hotel & as Executive
Director for retirement community. Co-owner of two successful shipping/packing
businesses. Chairwoman, University of Virginia Medical Center Holly Ball,
Charlottesville, VA. V.L. Murray PTO President. Court Appointed Special Advocate
1999-2010. Received Department of Justice Service Award, 2004 & 2009 for work as a
court appointed special advocate (Piedmont CASA). Charlottesville-Albemarle DSS
Foster Parent. Albemarle Garden Club, Fundraising Chairwoman. Kindergarten
Enrichment Volunteer, Lin-Wood Elementary School, Lincoln, NH.

WORK HISTORY

Bridge House Homeless Shelter, 2014-present
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Case Advocate
Piedmont CASA, 1999-2010
Court Appointed Special Advocate
Azalea Gardens Retirement Community, 1997-1999
Executive Director
Hornblower Dining Yachts, 1987-1989
Promotions Manager
Hyatt Hotel (Crystal City, VA) 1985-1987
Hotel Assistant Manager

CONTINUING EDUCATION

Southwest Community Services Diversion Training, February 2014
Choice Therapy Training, March 2014 (ongoing)

Dialectical Behavior Therapy for Case Managers, May 22, 2014
Motivational Interviewing & the Brief Alcohal Intervention, May 28, 2014
Bridges Out of Poverty Seminar, June 2014
New Hampshire Housing Coalition Conference, 2014
Sixth Annual C. Everett Koop, MD Tobacco Treatment Conference, September 26,
2014
New Hampshire Conference on Homelessness, October 2014
Seeking Safety Training, October 21, 2014
CPI Certification, 2015
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Key Personnel
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
. this Contract | this Contract

Cathy Bentwood Executive Director $36,000 0 0
Holly Cormiea Asst Shelter Manager & $33,280 50% $16,640

Community Qutreach
Francesca Diggs Case Manager $41,600 50% $20,800
Mike Doyle Housing and Job Specialist $24,700 0 $11,700

and also part time relief staff
Nancy Beyte Kaesezi | Relief Staff $20,800 0 0
Jay Apicilli Therapist $10,400 100% $10,400




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Action of Strafford County

1.4  Contractor Address
PO Box 160
Dover, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number
603-435-2500 05-95-42-423010-7927-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2016 $78,175

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature

MWJ?

1.12 _Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Pt sey AndrIws Ar Ker
bae ecutive Director

1.13  Ac nowledgement State of [YH , County of_m-f-f'or‘dl

Oré /, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person Whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

\\\““"l"""’,

1.13.1 ure of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace S‘\:\:\\ ,.------.H& ”/,,
Q?”‘ 5 commoon T
FHS Y
“’@\ @l\k/ S { “Bowes . § 2
[Seall z {x‘.grxpo'o‘:ﬁ?no H
1.13.2  Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace Zz 2z QF 5

,

Z . ‘.o \..
”I¢ X p? ::’Q, S

an R\‘\Ddf H oran Rescor e AN

1.14 State Agency Signature

=

1.15 Name and Tltlegﬁtate Agency Signatory

NG

R /et

1.16 ApprovaWN .H. Depagtment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

NO A~ [

1.18 Approv‘ﬁl by the Go*rnor and Exécutive Codncil

By:

Vunon D\ [l -fhih [&:Al

‘(/‘L\/[S
L
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

2af
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to business
days.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals and families in the Counties of
Rockingham and Strafford who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in
accordance with 24CFR Parts 91 and 576, with priority given to veterans and families
with children, in accordance with the NH Consolidated Plan 2011-2015.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall determine Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) eligibility for
individuals identified in Section 1.2, which includes but is not limited to:

2.1.1. Determining individual and family income eligibility in accordance with U.S.
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regulations for ESG, in accordance with
24 CFR 576. Income eligibility must be assessed every six (6) months of
program participation. The Contractor shall ensure annual income:

2.1.1.1.  Includes all earned and unearned income from all sources that go to
any family member.

21.1.2. Is calculated by annualizing current income to determine projected
annual income.

21.1.3. Is adjusted according participant income increases/decreases. The
Contractor shall ensure all prevention participant households report all
income changes within 30 days of the change occurring.

2.1.2. Documenting eligibility for households applying for Rapid Re-Housing and
Homelessness Prevention services according to HUD guidelines, which includes
but is not limited to collecting and documenting information regarding:

21.21. Immediate risks/crisis to individuals and families applying for
assistance to determine if steps are needed to avert physical or
psychological danger or threat of immediate housing loss.

2.1.2.2. Basic demographic and contact information, which includes but is not
limited to name, age, dependents, other family, current location,
contact phone numbers and address.

2.1.2.3. Problems as defined by participants that affect housing, such as late
rent, landlord problems, credit history, criminal history, employment
and income.

2.1.24. Solutions as defined by what the participant wants or requests from
what is available to him/her.

Community Action Program of Strafford County Contractor Initials W
Exhibit A g
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

2.1.25.  Eligibility information, including but not limited to, verification of literal
homelessness or imminent risk of homeless. Documentation must be
in accordance with HUD’s preferred method of verification as noted in
24 CFR 576.

2.1.2.6. Additional risks and vulnerabilities for prioritizing purposes, which
include, but are not limited to, severe rent burdens, domestic violence,
prior incarceration or institutionalization, health and mental health
issues, substance abuse, and other specific housing retention
barriers.

2.1.2.7.  Written third-party verification of rental arrearages, notices of eviction,
homelessness, or utility shutoff notices.

2.2. The Contractor shall conduct Housing Relocation and Stabilization (HRS) activities,
which includes but is not limited to inspecting each unit to ensure housing meets HUD
Habitability Standards, using HUD’s Checklist for Habitability Standards. Additionally,
the Contractor shall ensure:

2.2.1. Occupied housing meets State and local housing requirements including, but not
limited to, compliance with:

2.2.1.1.  All applicable state and local housing codes.

2.2.1.2.  Licensing requirements.

2.2.1.3.  All requirements regarding the condition of the structure.

2.2.1.4.  All requirements regarding the operation of the housing or services.

2.2.2. Occupied housing shall meet the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention and
Disclosure Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846), the Residential Lead Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C.4851-4856), and implementing regulations in
CFR part 35, subparts A, B, H, J, K, M, and R.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide financial assistance to eligible individuals identified in
Section 2.1, for services that include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Rental application fees.

2.3.2. Security deposits.

2.3.3. Utility deposits and payments.
2.3.4. Last month’s rent.

2.3.5. Moving costs.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide eligible individuals and families with Tenant-Based Rental
Assistance (TBRA), which includes but is not limited to:

2.4.1. A maximum amount of $3,000 in rental assistance to be applied toward monthly
rent and/or rental arrearages.

2.4.2. Rental assistance over no more than a six (6) month period. The Contractor
shall:
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2.4.21. Enter into a rental assistance agreement with the owner/landlord on
behalf of the program participant, ensuring that the Contractor
receives a copy of all general notices, complaints, and notices of
eviction from the landlord/owner.

2.4.2.2. Ensure each program participant obtains a written lease for the rental
unit, unless the assistance provided is solely for rental arrears.

2.4.2.3. Provide rental and all forms of financial assistance directly to the
landlord, utility or other third-party on behalf of the participant.

2.4.2.4. Ensure that rental assistance does not exceed the Fair Market Rent
established by HUD, as provided under 24 CFR part 888.

2425  Ensure rental units comply with HUD's standard of rent
reasonableness, as established in 24 CFR 982.507.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide eligible individuals and families with housing stability case
management. Eligible services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR
576.105, which includes but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Developing Housing Budget Plans for all eligible individuals using the information
identified in Section 2.1.3 to ensure participants have the ability to sustain the
cost of the housing on a long-term basis once the assistance or subsidy ends.

2.5.2. Assess, arrange, coordinate and monitor the delivery of individualized services to
facilitate housing stability for program participants who reside in permanent
housing, or assist a program participant in overcoming immediate barriers to
obtaining housing

2.6. The Contractor shall make available on-going housing stability case management for
six (6) months after rental assistance has ended.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure sufficient licensed staff to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Projects
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy (http://www.nh-

hmis.org).
3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The contractor shall provide quarterly reports using HMIS data which include, number
of entries into RRH, Prevention and related costs for all services by the 10th day
following the end of the quarter.

4. Deliverables of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide housing stabilization case management to a minimum of
twelve (12) households.

4.2. The Contractor shall successfully and rapidly re-house seven (7) households in safe
and sustained housing.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure all client level data in Section 2.7 is entered into NH HMIS
within five (5) days of the client’s entry into the program.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of’services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds: 100%

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Amount: $78,175

1.

Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for Rapid Re-Housing, Homelessness Prevention and Housing Stabilization
utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed $78,175.

REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that impiement 2 CFR part 200. Three (3) copies of the
audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of
said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial
report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the
guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with 24 CFR 576 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR
part 200 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines
established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2
CFR part 200.
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3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs including all
costs to the Contractor shall be submitted on a monthly basis by the Contractor for the
amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as
designated by the State which shall be completed and signed by the contractor. The
Contractor shall provide detailed financial expenses information with all payment
requests on a monthly basis.

3.2.1.The Contractor shall submit reimbursement documentation of expenditures of Federal
funds at the time of seeking reimbursement for costs. In no event shall the funds
provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions.
Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the Contractor may invoice for
balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8 based on documentation of
expenditures.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to
date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the
Contractor of any such disallowance. if the State disallows costs for which payment has
not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24 CFR
Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

4.1.The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs up to $78,175as defined by HUD
under the provisions and applicable regulations at 24 CFR 576 and 24 CFR part 91.

4.2 The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract
price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval
from the State.

4.3 Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1 Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any
required non-federal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct
operations of the Contractor.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
“Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or such equivalent system as the
State may require. Requests for payment shall be made according to section 3.2 of this
agreement.
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PECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include alt
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuais
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials E AZE
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficientty and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, ali payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disailowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
Justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials M

06/27/14 Page 3 of 5 Date / g



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title Vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’'s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2.  Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’'s performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shali mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regutations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence
with additional general liability umbrella insurance coverage of not less than $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlied substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace,

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:
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Date ! Name: ﬂ)efs /q'y\/(rews ParK(!’
Title: F/sccuﬁ‘me, Divector
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, shouid the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shail be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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10.

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11.

12.

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13.

14.

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

6|14 15° 4 (A 7ﬁ _
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

o|14)5 G0 AA Vi)

Date | | Name- crse Andrenws FParkKer
Title: Q,,‘a,w‘tuc Director
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials _Qﬂ
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I.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. ‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2)  Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHi to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification,;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made,

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

C. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’'s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PH!, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business g ?
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PH! has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PH! may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’'s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’'s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. S 2

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement [0 olq t g
Page 5 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

N DS [ ommunidy Ackion ) arnyshy 4 Shm%/t

The State Name of the Cbntrac}oj

P dn D ety

Signature of Authorized Representative

Doty Andyaws Rarke

Name of Alithorized Répresentatjfe Name of Adthorized Representative
o Dnmisernic et W Direder
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
Z/ a%’o M [14]i
Date /S / Date /

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials &L i
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement [ﬂ !M I l g
Page 6 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

DOONO A WN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

olalis sy L

Date / I Name: Betsey /drews FarKer
Title: Z)LM e D(der

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials 2 é 4:2 ’ ‘{

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
Date £ l




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 044 3% 53&3

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements? '

K NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as foilows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials [ﬂ (5

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date



State of Nefw Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Community Action Partnership of Strafford County is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed May 25, 1965. I further certify that it is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 6™ day of April, A.D. 2015

oy Gkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Colene Arnold , do hereby certify that:
{(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1.l am a duly elected Officer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on December 15, 2014:
{Date)

RESOLVED: That the Betsey Andrews Parker, Executive Director
{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 29 dayof _June , 2015_.

{Date Contract Signed)
4. ___ Betsey Andrews Parker is the duly elected Executive Director

(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

Gl lined

{Signature of the Elected Offscer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of 5*(0&:9‘;0 ‘Cd

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this &M\ day of <YL O , 2015,

P (Dol O
il

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)
otary PublicNustice of the Peace)

W \\“\muum,,,
\

v
EXPIRES
OCT. 29, 2019
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NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 6/24/2015

l ®
ACORD
V

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

Community Action Partnership of Strafford

PRODUCER ﬁg,’},ym Mark R. Harvie, VP, Commercial Lines Manager
CGI Business Insurance PHONE . (603)232-9306 A8 Noy:
171 Londonderry Turnpike E‘D"'[fg'gs&mharvie@cgibenefitsgroup.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Hooksett NH 03106 INSURER A :Hanover Insurance Company
INSURED

insurer 8 New York Marine & General Ins

INSURER C :
County & CAP of Strafford County Head Start INSURER D :
PO Box 160 INSURER E :
Dover NH 03821-1060 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:14-15 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
A | cLamS.MaDE OCCUR PHVA192135 01 12/31/2014112/31/2015| yep exp (Any one person) | § 5,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY |8 1,000,000
L GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 1,000,000
X | poLicY ﬁé«f’f LOC $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY AWVA156930 01 (Fa accident) $ 1,000,000
A X | any auTo BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED 12/31/2014[12/31/2015 i
ALY SoHED /31/ /31/ BODILY INJURY (Per accident) [ $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
Uninsured motorist combined | 1,000,000
X |umMBRELLALIKB | X | ocour UHVA192136 01 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
DED | IRETENﬂONS a 12/31/2014{12/31/2015 s
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION c201400007962 X | WC STATU. | IOETF:*-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TS
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE @ NIA Statutory State 3 A. NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICERMMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH) 12/31/201412/31/2015| | piSEASE - EA EMPLOYEH $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 1,000,000
A | Professional Liability [ZHVA192135 01 12/31/2014{12/31/2015| gach Occurrence $1,000,000
Aggregate $3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

i —
Edward Young/KF Gz mnamee s oF° - ——

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INS0N25 9010051 n1

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.

Tha ACORN nama and Innn ara ranictarad marke nf ACNRN




MISSION
To educate, advocate and assist people
in Strafford County to help meet
their basic needs and promote
self-sufficiency

¢ :

of Strafford County

VISION
Working to eliminate poverty in
Strafford County
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACOCOUNTANTS
WIDLFFBORO ¢ NORTH CONWAY
DOVER o CONCORD
STRATHAM
To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Dover, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Partnership of

Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of cash flows,
and notes to the financial statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, and its cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in its net assets
for the year ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s 2013 financial

statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated June 24, 2014. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, is consistent, in
all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

June 10, 2015, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County’'s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

frafassind Cssotiakson

June 10, 2015
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Security deposits

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS

Property, net of accumulated depreciation

Other noncurrent assets
Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Demand note payable
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advances

Other current liabilities
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Undesignated
Board designated

Total unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Financial Statements

3

201 201
$ 744,514 $ 614,293
770,066 656,934
8,754 15,307
11,586 79,283
1,634,920 1,365,817
19,201 19,261
435,446 667,667
12,500 10,000
467,147 696,928
$ 2,002,067 $ 2,062,745
$ 80,735 $ 87,178
126,063 67,785
120,172 92,674
78,154 80,592
491,134 542,894
137 55,918
896,395 927,041
669,373 1,085,270
307,002 7,328
976,375 1,072,598
129,297 63,106
1,105,672 1,135,704
$ 2,002,067 $ 2,062,745




STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant revenue
Fees for service
Rent revenue
Public support
In-kind donations
Interest

Fundraising
Other revenue

Total revenues and support

EXPENSES
Program services

Child services
Community services
Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization
Workforce development

Total program services
Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
LOSS ON SALE OF BUILDING

LOSS ON SALE OF BUILDING

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Temporarily 2014 2013
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

$ 7545723 - $ 7,545723 $ 7,364,989
424 089 - 424,089 382,531
24,353 . - 24,353 26,715
366,137 $ 66,191 432 328 312,699
439,830 - 439,830 486,220

301 - 301 108

31,299 - 31,299 19,866

- - - 5192

8,831,732 66,191 8,897,923 8,598,320
3,374,862 - 3,374,862 2,421,621
831,155 - 831,155 1,599,936
2,975,261 - 2,975,261 2,851,652
189,080 - 189,080 220,626
133,564 - 133,564 460,621
258,219 - 258,219 235,839
7,762,141 - 7,762,141 7,790,295
1,031,611 - 1,031,611 803,269
23,644 - 23,644 8,070
8,817,396 - 8,817,396 8,601,634
14,336 66,191 80,527 (3,314)
(110,559) - (110,559) -
(96,223) 66,191 (30,032) (3,314)
1,072,598 63,106 1,135,704 1,139,018

$ 976,375 $ 129,297 $ 1,105,672 $ 1,135,704

See Notes to Financial Statements

4



STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
In-kind donation of vehicle
Loss on sale of building
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
inventory
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
Other noncurrent assets
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advances
Other current liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of demand note payable
Repayment of long term debt
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

See Notes to Financial Statements

5

2014 2013

$ (30,032 (3,314)
69,333 78,719
- (48,501)

110,559 -
(113,132) 16,218
6,553 98,291
67,697 (38,022)

(60) -
(2,500) (10,000)

58,278 34,208
27,498 5,152
(2,438) 11,971
(51,760) 59,174
(55,781) 5449
84,215 209,345
(77,022) (807)
129,471 -
52,449 (807)
(6,443) (2,822)
- (34,050)
(6,443) (36,872)
130,221 171,666
614,293 442 627

$ 744514 614,293
$ 3,252 4,211
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NOTE 1.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)

private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and professionalism.

In addition to its administrative office located in Dover, the Agency maintains its
outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington, Milton, Rochester,
Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal, state, county and
local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities, foundation and
charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business donations, and
donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite board of
directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit and non-
profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is responsible
for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the causes and
conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and community
outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The Agency
administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000 people
annually, and the programs are designed to have a measureable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of

accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
of the United States.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958-210, Financial Statements of Not-For-
Profit Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958-210, the Agency is required to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets
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and permanently restricted net assets. The classes of net assets are determined
by the presence or absence of donor restrictions.

Unrestricted: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations. Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific
purposes by action of the Board of Directors.

Temporarily Restricted: Net assets whose use is limited by donor
Imposed stipulations that will either expire with the passage of time or be
fulfilled or removed by actions of the Agency.

Permanently Restricted: Net assets reflecting the historical cost of gifts
(and in certain circumstances, the earnings from those gifts), subject to
donor-imposed stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in
perpetuity to produce income for general or specific purposes.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 the Agency had unrestricted and temporarily
restricted net assets.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and
recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed
or expenditures are incurred.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized
as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standard Codification No. 825, “Financial Instruments”, requires the
Agency to disclose estimated fair value for its financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of cash, investments, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, inventory,
accounts payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximate fair
value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Inventory
Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed

value, using the first-in, first-out method.



Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Furniture, equipment and machinery 3-10 years
Vehicles 5- 7 years

Depreciation expense aggregated $69,333 and $78,719 for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liability of $78,154 and $80,592 at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

Income Taxes

The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, “Accounting for Income Taxes”,
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency’s tax position taken on its information returns for the years
(2011 through 2014), for the purposes of implementation, and has concluded that
no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the Agency’s financial
statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Advertising Expenses
The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising

costs for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to $12,641
and $15,498, respectively.



NOTE 2.

In-kind Donations

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair market value of the
rental space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind
expense in the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of
the donation was determined to be $199,684 and $209,139 for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of
these services was determined to be $82,809 and $106,027 for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $132,268
and $25,070, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2014. For the year
ended December 31, 2013, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $170,871 and $12,207, respectively.

The Agency also received, in the form of an in-kind contribution, a portion of a
bus that was placed in service during the year ended December 31, 2013. Under
the terms of the agreement the Agency paid approximately $5,333 and received
a bus with a value of approximately $53,834.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been

summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting activities benefited.

Subsequent Events
Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 10, 2015, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

PROPERTY
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, property consisted of the following:
2014 2013
Land, buildings and improvements $ 416,435 $ 719,429
Furniture, equipment and machinery 507,304 482,186
Vehicles 302,466 296,266
Total 1,226,205 1,497,881
Less accumulated depreciation 790,759 830,214
Net property $ 435446 $ 667,667

The sale of 60 Charles Street, Farmington New Hampshire accounts for the
reduction in the land, buildings and improvements during the year ended
December 31, 2014.
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NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

NOTE 8.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December 31,
2014 and 2013. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

PLEDGED ASSETS
As described in Note 5, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency’s demand note payable agreement.

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$250,000. The note is payable upon demand, but in the absence of demand, is
due on November 30, 2015. Interest is stated at the prime rate plus 1% which
result in an interest rate of 4.25% at December 31, 2014 and 2013. The note is
collateralized by all the assets of the Agency.

LONG TERM DEBT

The Agency had a 7.50% mortgage payable to a financial institution in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,209 through May 2013, when the note
was paid in full. The note was collateralized by a first mortgage lien and
assignment of leases and rents on certain real estate of the Agency.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Agency had $129,297 and $63,106 in net
assets temporarily restricted by donor-imposed use restrictions, respectively.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various operating leases. For the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, the annual lease/rent expense for the leased facilities was
$163,615 and $121,191, respectively. Certain equipment is leased by the
Agency under the terms of various operating leases.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as
follows:

11



NOTE 9.

NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

Year Ended

December 31 Amount
2015 $ 150,533
2016 84,234
2017 11,780
2018 8,729
2019 2,021
Total $ 257,297
RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a voluntary contributory 403(b) plan for its employees who
meet certain requirements as defined in the plan. The Agency matches 25% of
employee contributions to the plan, to a maximum of 5% of salaries. Retirement
plan contributions for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 totaled
$15,988 and $29,952, respectively.

FUNDRAISING EXPENSES
The fundraising expenses related to fundraising revenues were $23,644 and
$8,070 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

A large percentage of the Agency’'s total revenue was received from two
contractors, the Federal Government and the State of New Hampshire. |t is
always considered to be at least reasonably possible that either contractor could
be lost in the near term; however, Management feels this risk is of no particular
concern at this time.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balances in excess of $250,000. At
December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no uninsured cash balances.

CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

12



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal grant activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2014. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion
of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, change in net assets, or
cash flows of the Agency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where
available.

FOOD DONATION
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2014
and 2013, and the related statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and the related statements of activities and functional
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014 and have issued our report thereon dated
June 10, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community

Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Lane MeDomgll ¢ DSk,
ﬂ%ﬁkﬂ (Ps50tca ¥y ar

June 10, 2015
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s (a New Hampshire

nonprofit organization) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s major federal programs for the
year ended December 31, 2014. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County complied, in all material

respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of

our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.
ééﬂ@’ Me Do ed( ¢ @&/}é
June 10, 2015 //%’%hf (Ds50tcakfan

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County.

No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133. No
material weaknesses are reported.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

. There were no audit findings which the auditor would be required to report under

Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.

The programs tested as major were: Department of Health and Human Services, Low
Income Home Energy Assistance Program, CFDA 93.568, Temporary Assistance for
Needy Families, CFDA 93.558, Department of Labor, WIA Adult Program, CFDA 17.258
and WIA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants, CFDA 17.278.

The threshold used for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $300,000.

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended December 31, 2013.

20



& .
Action

PARTNERSMHIP

of Strafford County
ATTACHMENT
2015 Board of Directors
David Terlemezian, Chair Carrie DiGeorge, Vice Chair
Jeni Mosca, Treasurer Colene Arnold, Secretary
Jason Shute Joe Bailey
Becky Sherburne Cassandra Mason
Lauren Berman Sunmayyab (Maya) Wylder
Chris Lawrence Jean Miccolo
Jeannie Wilson Dot Hooper

Don Routhier

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Administrative & Weatherization Office, 642 Central Avenue, Dover, NH 603-516-8130
Mailing address: P.O. Box 160, Dover, NH 03821-0160

Outreach Offices: Head Start Centers:
61 Locust Street, Dover 603-516-8126 62A Whittier Street, Dover 603-516-2300
527 Main Street, Farmington 603-516-8191 120 Main Street, Farmington 603-755-2883

55 Industrial Drive, Milton 603-652-0990
150 Wakefield Street, Rochester 603-516-2330
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CHERYL M. ROBICHEAU
Work Experience:

July 2008 — Present

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County - Housing Specialist
In this position I am responsible for the administration of various program grants which focus on assisting low-income individuals
with obtaining or retaining affordable housing by assisting with security deposits, rent/mortgage or utility assistance, budget
counseling, and helping guide clients toward the goal of self-sufficiency. I have worked with other staff members to develop
coordinated application and reporting processes and procedures in order to streamline the client experience with the Agency. 1
assist other Program Directors with administrative tasks as assigned. I have also worked with Fuel Assistance and Outreach
Services. I currently serve on the Board of Directors for Neighbor Helping Neighbor as well as the Emergency Food and Shelter
Program, and participate in the local Elderly Wraparound Meetings.

April 1997- June 2008

Cannon Cochran Management Service, Inc (Formerly Northern General Services.) Administrative Assistant/Provider Representative

—~ CompMC Managed Care for Workers’ Compensation
In my long tenure with this employer, I worked closely with the Nurse Case Management staff, assisting with data entry and
developing databases to track participating medical providers for reporting to the State of NH. I handled a medical-only caseload
entering medical notes and paying bills. As Provider Representative, I was responsible for contracting medical providers
throughout the State of NH for our Provider Network, as well as organizing the documents needed for our State Certification.

May 1996 — April 1997 (part-time, temporary employment)

University of NH — Computer Science Department - Administrative Assistant to Director of Graduate Studies
In this position I was responsible for all correspondence between the Director of Graduate Studies and students. I also scheduled
appointments, and assisted foreign applicants with documents needed for their applications to the program.

May 1996 — November 1996 (part-time, temporary employment)

Northern General Services - Administrative Assistant
In this position I was responsible for entering workers’ compensation claims into the database and sending correspondence to
clients. I assisted the Senior Nurse Case Manager in developing processes for the new program for medical management of
workers’ compensation claims, including developing forms, processes and procedures.

November 1996 — April 1997 (part-time, temporary employment)
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County - Data Entry Clerk
In this part-time position I was responsible for entering and verifying data entry for Fuel Assistance applications.

June 1992 - May 1996

Willis Corroon of NH - Administrative Assistant — Pilot Program / CompWorks Managed Care for Workers’ Compensation
In this position I worked with the Program Director and Nurse Case Manager for the development and implementation of the
State of NH Pilot Program for Managed Care for Workers’ Compensation. I helped to develop the processes and procedures,
provider network, and forms initially utilized by this program, which eventually became the model for all Managed Care
Programs within the State.

October 1987 — May 1992
BankEast —-Data Entry Clerk, Operations Department
In this position I was responsible for data entry for the Savings, IRA and Overdraft Departments.

Skills:
I have strong organization skills, and have the ability to multi-task. I am moderately proficient in Excel and Word, am able to develop
spreadsheets and professional correspondence, and have good verbal and written communication skills.

Education:
Spaulding High School, Rochester, NH Graduated 1987
Various classes and training in Microsoft Office, Word and Excel



C. Quinn Slayton

SPECIALITIES

e Community Action leadership
Program management
Anti-poverty work
Fundraising & grant writing
Staff & volunteer supervision

CAREER HIGHLIGHTS

® Nonprofit senior leadership experience, specifically at a Community Action Agency

e Experience with program management, including budget oversight, staff & volunteer
supervision, and program evaluation

e Years of successful fundraising through individual donor development, workplace campaigns,
and grant writing

e Strong relationships with a diverse portfolio of greater Seacoast businesses and nonprofits

e Lead organizer on two successful community initiatives to support low-income and homeless
community members

e Certified trainer in Bridges Out of Poverty to change mindsets to create better community
strategies around ending poverty

e Staff leader on mission advancement team, including a reorganization of agency intake system

e Graduate of Leadership Seacoast, a 6-month intensive community leadership program

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATIONS

Certificate of Non-Profit & National Service Management, 2009
Evans School of Public Affairs, University of Washington, Seattle, WA
Bachelor of Fine Art, 2004

Ball State University, Muncie, IN

CURRENT POSITION
Community Services & Housing Director: December 2014 - present
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH
Senior level position with significant responsibility for supervision and oversight of major programs
and staff. Responsible for grant writing, budget development & tracking, coordinating,

implementing, evaluating and reporting on programs for Community Services (energy, food pantry
and senior transportation), Weatherization, Housing, Homeless Outreach and Workforce programs.

WORK EXPERIENCE
Director, Resource Development: July 2012 — November 2014
United Way of the Greater Seacoast, Portsmouth, NH & United Way of Massachusetts Bay &
Merrimack Valley, Lowell, NH

Growing & strengthening relationships with businesses, non-profits, and individuals to inspire
greater and more consistent giving to the United Way in the Greater Seacoast region of New
Hampshire and the Merrimack Valley region of Massachusetts.

Quinn Slayton



Volunteer Program Manager: August 2009 - July 2012
Skagit County Community Action Agency, Mount Vernon, WA

Senior manager of the Volunteerism Division, including grants management of national service
programs, the volunteer center, and community engagement & fund development initiatives.

Campaign Associate: September 2011 — December 2011
United Way of Skagit County, Burlington, WA

Led workplace campaign presentations at businesses, non-profits, and school district to inspire
giving to United Way.

Project Supervisor: August 2006 - August 2009
Washington Reading Corps & VISTA, Skagit County Community Action Agency, Mount Vernon, WA

Supervised and managed 60 AmeriCorps national service members in 20 school and non-profit sites.

Responsible for member & site support and fiscal management of program.

Board Member: October 2006 - October 2007
The Connection: A Women’s Space, Bellingham, WA

Founding board member of women’s community arts center. Led efforts to apply for 501(c)3 status.

Team Leader (AmeriCorps VISTA Leader): August 2005 - August 2006

Washington Reading Corps, Campus Compact, Western Washington University, Bellingham, WA
Provided support, leadership, and training to AmeriCorps members serving as reading tutors in
elementary schools. Responsible for recruiting, interviewing, and hiring 34 positions.

School Safety Coordinator (AmeriCorps VISTA): August 2004 - August 2005

Bethel School District, Alliance for Children, Youth, & Families, Tacoma, WA

Assisted school district with implementation of school safety plans. Developed and illustrated a
children’s curriculum for earthquake safety education implemented in elementary schools.

ORGANIZATIONS

o Seacoast Rotary, March 2014-present

United Way Emerging Leaders, September 2013-present
Catapult, September 2012-present

Leadership Seacoast, January 2012-present

OTHER SKILLS

e High energy, positive attitude

Thrive in a diverse work place

Excellent verbal & written communication skills

Proficiency in Microsoft Office suite, Adobe products, website design, and database creation
Experience with Raiser’s Edge, CSST, HMIS, ANDAR and CRM.

Quinn Slayton



Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Cheryl Robicheau Housing Specialist $33,715 12.5% $4,214

Quinn Slayton Community Services & $57,000 5% $2.850

Housing Director




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2  State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.3  Contractor Name

Easter Seals New Hampshire

1.4 Contractor Address

Easter Seals New Hampshire

555 Auburn Street

Manchester, NH 03103 |

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number
603-623-8863 05-95-42-423010-7927-102-

500731

June 30, 2016

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

$79,011

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature

Urlrce—

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

L/, A e, (T

105

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of QH County of Mtu_gh

On A , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

i1.13.2
! CYNTHIA ROSS, Notary Public
My Commission Expires March 12, 2019

1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
n% /{ﬂd
. Seal}
Name znd 7itie of Notary or Justice of the Peace

134 State Agency Signature

1.15 Name and Ti'fle of State Agency Signatory

Veq
/&—1( ity

6:44474 (7o 4

By:

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Dep@ﬁt of Administration, Division of Personnel af appl?c'able)

Director, On:

By:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

1.18 Approval by the ﬁvernor and Exkcutive Cpuncil

By:

paian A \feqly fipikay 7 /u//gs
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(**Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:
Date:

78
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word ““data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: Z/
Date: & /A 2/ PG -



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(*Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: E”
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to business
days.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals and families in the County of
Hillsborough who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in accordance with
24CFR Parts 91 and 576, with priority given to veterans and families with children, in
accordance with the NH Consolidated Plan 2011-2015.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningfui
access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall determine Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) eligibility for
individuals identified in Section 1.2, which includes but is not limited to:

2.1.1. Determining individual and family income eligibility in accordance with U.S.
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regulations for ESG, in accordance with
24 CFR 576. Income eligibility must be assessed every 6 months of program
participation. The Contractor shall ensure annual income:

2.1.1.1.  Includes all earned and unearned income from all sources that go to
any family member.

21.1.2. Is calculated by annualizing current income to determine projected
annual income.

2.11.3. Is adjusted according participant income increases/decreases. The
Contractor shall ensure all prevention participant households report all
income changes within 30 days of the change occurring.

2.1.2. Documenting eligibility for households applying for Rapid Re-Housing and
Homelessness Prevention services according to HUD guidelines, which includes
but is not limited to collecting and documenting information regarding:

2.1.21. Immediate risks/crisis to individuals and families applying for
assistance to determine if steps are needed to avert physical or
psychological danger or threat of immediate housing loss.

2.1.2.2. Basic demographic and contact information, which includes but is not
limited to name, age, dependents, other family, current location,
contact phone numbers and address.

2.1.2.3. Problems as defined by participants that affect housing, such as late
rent, landlord problems, credit history, criminal history, employment
and income.

21.24. Solutions as defined by what the participant wants or requests from
what is available to him/her.

Easter Seals New Hampshire Contractor Initials E ’
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

2.1.2.5.  Eligibility information, including but not limited to, verification of literal
homelessness or imminent risk of homeless. Documentation must be
in accordance with HUD's preferred method of verification as noted in
24 CFR 576.

2.1.2.6. Additional risks and vulnerabilities for prioritizing purposes, which
include, but are not limited to, severe rent burdens, domestic violence,
prior incarceration or institutionalization, health and mental health
issues, substance abuse, and other specific housing retention
barriers.

21.2.7. Wiritten third-party verification of rental arrearages, notices of eviction,
homelessness, or utility shutoff notices.

2.2. The Contractor shall conduct Housing Relocation and Stabilization (HRS) activities,
which includes but is not limited to inspecting each unit to ensure housing meets HUD
Habitability Standards, using HUD’s Checklist for Habitability Standards. Additionally,
the Contractor shall ensure:

2.2.1. Occupied housing meets State and local housing requirements including, but not
limited to, compliance with:

2.21.1. All applicable state and local housing codes.

2.21.2. Licensing requirements.

2.2.1.3. All requirements regarding the condition of the structure.

22.1.4. Al requirements regarding the operation of the housing or services.

2.2.2. Occupied housing shall meet the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention and
Disclosure Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846), the Residential Lead Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C.4851-4856), and implementing regulations in
CFR part 35, subparts A, B, H, J, K, M, and R.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide financial assistance to eligible individuals identified in
Section 2.1, for services that include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Rental application fees.

2.3.2. Security deposits.

2.3.3. Utility deposits and payments.
2.3.4. Last month’s rent.

2.3.5. Moving costs.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide eligible individuals and families with Tenant-Based Rental
Assistance (TBRA), which includes but is not limited to:

2.41. A maximum amount of $3,000 in rental assistance to be applied toward monthly
rent and/or rental arrearages.

2.4 2. Rental assistance over no more than a 6 month period. The Contractor shall:

2.421. Enter into a rental assistance agreement with the owner/landlord on
behalf of the program participant, ensuring that the Contractor

Easter Seals New Hampshire Contractor Initials E’
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

receives a copy of all general notices, complaints, and notices of
eviction from the landlord/owner.

2.4.2.2. Ensure each program participant obtains a written lease for the rental
unit, unless the assistance provided is solely for rental arrears.

24.23. Provide rental and all forms of financial assistance directly to the
landlord, utility or other third-party on behalf of the participant.

2.4.2.4. Ensure that rental assistance does not exceed the Fair Market Rent
established by HUD, as provided under 24 CFR part 888.

24.25. Ensure rental units comply with HUD's standard of rent
reasonableness, as established in 24 CFR 982.507.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide eligible individuals and families with housing stability case
management. Eligible services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR
576.105, which includes but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Developing Housing Budget Plans for all eligible individuals using the information
identified in Section 2.1.3 to ensure participants have the ability to sustain the
cost of the housing on a long-term basis once the assistance or subsidy ends.

2.5.2. Assess, arrange, coordinate and monitor the delivery of individualized services to
facilitate housing stability for program participants who reside in permanent
housing, or assist a program participant in overcoming immediate barriers to
obtaining housing

2.6. The Contractor shall make available on-going housing stability case management for
six (6) months after rental assistance has ended.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure sufficient licensed staff to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Projects
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy (http://www.nh-

hmis.org).
3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The contractor shall provide quarterly reports using HMIS data which include, number
of entries into RRH, Prevention and related costs for all services by the 10th day
following the end of the quarter.

4. Deliverables of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide housing stabilization case management to a minimum of
twenty-three (23) households.

4.2. The Contractor shall successfully and rapidly re-house fourteen (14) households in safe
and sustained housing.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure all client level data in Section 2.7 is entered into NH HMIS
within five (5) days of the client’s entry into the program.

Easter Seafs New Hampshire Contractor Initials Z;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds: 100%

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Amount: $79,011

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for Rapid Re-Housing, Homelessness Prevention and Housing Stabilization
utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed $79,011

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement 2 CFR part 200. Three (3) copies of the
audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of
said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial
report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the
guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean alil
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with 24 CFR 576 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR
part 200 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines
established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2
CFR part 200.
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3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs including all
costs to the Contractor shall be submitted on a monthly basis by the Contractor for the
amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as
designated by the State which shall be completed and signed by the contractor. The
Contractor shall provide detailed financial expenses information with all payment
requests on a monthly basis.

3.2.1.The Contractor shall submit reimbursement documentation of expenditures of Federal
funds at the time of seeking reimbursement for costs. In no event shall the funds
provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions.
Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the Contractor may invoice for
balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8 based on documentation of
expenditures.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to
date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the
Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which payment has
not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24 CFR
Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

4.1.The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs up to $79,011as defined by HUD
under the provisions and applicable regulations at 24 CFR 576 and 24 CFR part 91.

4.2 The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract
price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval
from the State.

4.3 Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1 Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any
required non-federal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct
operations of the Contractor.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
“Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or such equivalent system as the
State may require. Requests for payment shall be made according to section 3.2 of this
agreement.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shail be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: in addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or {(except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1.  Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2, Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shail not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shal! disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shali comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are-available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shail do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPQOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shail mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean ali such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general iiability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence with
additional general liability umbrella insurance coverage of not less than $15,000,000 per occurrence; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regutation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.
T foulr S 12
Contractor Name: /{’W 7\ s

b/pd bty Eldre—
Date ?iaﬂren:e: /\L’// Al 7:&_/// Y
(70
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
madification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for

each such failure. : |
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily resuit in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

»ou

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1.

11.2.

11.4.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: 24’\44)/ Jad/jf/d/;/ﬂ/y,ﬂfé//}f’/ﬂ/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equai
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

gster Syl e SN o, /57
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

¢c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA’ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual® shall have the same meaning as the term “individual’ in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j-  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials E/
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. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disciose PHi to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. if Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Exhibit 1

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PH!
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’'s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

K. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

L. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business g_;_/__
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4)  Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHL.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. _g7_.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I,

A ¢ bf/—h‘-(‘ Llspe S e T, 1

The State Name of the Contractor

Slgnature o) ized Repr j,aéntatlve Signature of Authorized Representative
L1y TAA sicr

oM
Name of Authonzed Representative J Name of Authorized Representative
kmnjﬁfb /o’mm,\e{u—x Cfa
Title of Autho?ﬁ Representatwe Title of Authorized Representative
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information}), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SONOhwN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.
; 7"
gl Jri W 5 e
Contractor Name: ﬁ”‘/ﬁ %/Z/{‘)W W

b A 7%0//’ f%n%lﬁu

Date Name: =/ 70 2d)cp
Title: C/ —
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials E ; )
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance M‘
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: _ 08-5573467

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X __NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials %H

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance - / -
CUDHHS/10713 Page 2 of 2 Date @ Z‘/\f M//



State of Nefw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed November 6, 1967. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office

1s concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, [ hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 6™ day of April, A.D. 2015

Zoy Gkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

! Bermy Butee , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Enstee Scas A/Evd H/}MFSM'ZE, NC.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on A (L g, 2o
(Date)

RESOLVED: Thatthe __ CHIEP Fivaned  OFFICER
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalif of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as tre/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the AT day of _Juwg .20/ .
(Date Contract Signed)

4. _ELIN TREAMOR is the duly elected __C #f (EF FiMANC AL OFICER
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

oyt ot

(Bignatufe of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of éézg §ba¢u§ A

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this oﬁﬁ day of Sw ,20 48,

By BETTY Bulge

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agen'cy) .
Lot Ko

ANotary Public/Justice of the Peace)
(NOTARY SEAL}

CYNTHIA ROSS, Notary Public
Cominission Expires: My Commission Expires March 12, 2019

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



ACORD.

Client#: 497072

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

EASTESEA7?

DATE (MN/DD/YYYY)
8/22/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION DNLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR FRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hotder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certiticate holder in lieu of such endorsement{s).

PARADDUCER ECA}H‘EACT
Usi lnsu::ance Services I..LC LENHC £y 855-874-0123 ; F:!é oy B03-625-1107
3 Executive Park Dr., Suite 300 € &‘gsss sandy.lacroix@usi.biz
Bedford, NH 03110
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
855-874-0123 msurer 4 : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED .
Easter Seals NH, Inc. WSURERB.
INSURER C
Easter Seals NY, inc. INSURER O -
555 Auburn Street eURER Ej
Manchester, NH 03103 X
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INDICATED.

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WiTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HMAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

HISE 'ADDLISUBH POLICY EFF T POLICY EXP
LTR | TYPE OF INSURANCE NSH v?va POLICY NUMBER (MS/DB/YYYY)  (MRUDD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY X | X PHPK1220846 08/01/2014: 09/01/201 5 EACH QCCURBENCE $1,000,000
N AENTE
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABLTY PR ?g;%'éé.i?em, $100,000
cramsmape | X i OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | 5,000
X Professmnal Liab FERSONAL & AOV INJusy 151,000,000
“““““““ GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GENY, AGGREGATE LIMT APPLIES PER SRODUCTS - coMPoP a6 | 53,000,000
| LOY SEC | 1 o0 - §
- EOUB: ETE TN
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1220846 09/01/2014|09/01/2015 OUSIED SINGLELIMIT 1 .1 000,000
X any auTo SO0ILY INJURY (Per person | $
VVVVV 2&82\;?450 g 55”5 DULED HODILY IJURY iFar accident} | §
"""""" N on CWNED BHOPERTY DAMAGE s
X wireo autos . X | auTos Per accuton)
f P8
> V
A | X UMBRELLALIAB | X | ecuR PHUB471553 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE | 515,000,000
EXCESS LIAB : CLAMS MADE AGGREGATE : 515,000,000
~oep X mevenTion $810,000 $
. WORKERS COMPENSATION W STATU T TloT
| AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YN ORY LTS (ER
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTIVE ™| E1 EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED [ inra
{Mandatory in NH} : T4 UISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE: §
i yes, gescring undgsr N
DESCRIPTION OF DPERATIONS below £ DISEASE - POUICY LIMIT | $
|

DESCHIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additi
~Supplemental Names**: Easter Seals NY, inc., Easter Seais ME, Inc., STS, Inc., Agency Realty, inc.,

Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc., Manchester Alcohal Rehabilitation Center, Inc., dba The Farnum Center,
Easter Seals VT, Inc.,- The General Liability poticy includes a Blanket Automatic Additional insured
Endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blanket Waliver of Subrogation status to the Certificate
Holder, only when there is a written contract or written agreement between the named insured and the

{See Attached Descriptions)

6l Remarks

Qetodul

i more space is required}

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH

DHHSE Office of Program Support;

129 Pleasant Street
Congord, NH (3301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE Will 8E DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

1 of 2

#513141719/M13136562

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Easter Seals

DISABILITY SERVICES
®

Mission:

Easter Seals provides exceptional services to
ensure that all people with disabilities or special
needs and their families have equal
opportunities to live, learn, work and play in

their communities.
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BAKER|/NEWMAN % NOYES

|
Certified Fublic Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC

1



To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather
than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 5, 2014
on our consideration of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Easter Seals New Hampshire,
Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

&(er namn ek)yes

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 5, 2014



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31,2014 and 2013

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable, less contractual allowance
of $218,900 in 2014 and $210,300 in 2013, and allowance for
doubtful accounts of $440,800 in 2014 and $930,400 in 2013
Contributions receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $45,400 in 2014 and $25,500 in 2013
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Property held for sale

Bond issuance costs, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in trusts held by others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Other liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

201 2013
$ 2,757,134 § 3,042,621
341,653 247,471
10,122,747 11,224,708
705,374 686,110
300,046 541,961
678,326 783.844
14,905,280 16,526,715
986,277 4,558,513
25,094,383 28,066,884
1,289,894 822,504
235,113 244,751
13,833,046 14,264,341
1,550,919 6.830.800
$57,894912 $71.314.508
$ 2,197,904 3§ 4,212,394
1,907,743 1,812,128
4,251,482 4,143,454
858,258 839,567
615,570 708,132
4,228.339 796,290
14,059,296 12,511,965
999,167 4,218,053
987,185 1,367,458
2,714,243 2,050,214
18,976,300 25,318,667
37,736,191 45,466,357
14,189,337 14,767,708
944,862 925,437
5,024,522 10,155,006
20,158,721  25.848.151
$57.894.912 $71.314.508



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2014

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions

Special events, net of related
direct costs of $819,901

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $67,889

Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue

Total public support and
revenue

Operating expenses:

Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services

Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations

4

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

744,262 § 542,179 13,813 § 1,300,254
1,059,080 756,895 - 1,815,975
468,261 33,589 - 501,850
448,558 — - 448,558

1.356.595 (1,356.595) — —
4,076,756 (23,932) 13,813 4,066,637
67,725,297 - - 67,725,297
25,094,296 - - 25,094,296
4,270,196 - - 4,270,196
742,337 3,613 - 745,950
65,204 - - 65,204
459,188 - - 459,188
98.356.518 3.613 - 98,360,131
102,433,274 (20,319) 13,813 102,426,768
515,992 - - 515,992
29,065 — - 29,065
89.987.134 — - 89.987.134
90,532,191 - -~ 90,532,191
9,419,570 - - 9,419,570
2,006,939 - - 2.006,939
11,426.509 - - 11,426.509
101,958,700 - — 101,958,700
122.586 — - 122,586
102,081,286 - - 102.081.286
351,988 (20,319) 13,813 345,482



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31,2014

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others

Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Other nonoperating losses

Increase in net assets before effects
of deconsolidation of affiliate

Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12

Increase (decrease) in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations —
see note 13

Total (decrease) increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$  (594,854) $ - 3 - (594,854)
1,496,964 37,986 - 1,534,950
- - 574,970 574,970
14,352 - - 14,352
(249.092) - - (249.092)
667,370 37.986 574,970 1,280,326
1,019,358 17,667 588,783 1,625,808
(121.612) (200)  (5.719.267) ' _(5.841.079)
897,746 17,467  (5,130,484) (4,215,271)
(1.476,117) 1.958 - (1.474.159)
(578,371) 19,425  (5,130,484) (5,689,430)
14,767,708 925,437  10.155.006 25,848.151
$_14,189337 §__ 944,862 $.5,024,522 §_20.158.721



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31,2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions $ 861,583 §$ 1,622,346 $ 13,648 $ 2,497,577
Special events, net of related .
direct costs of $307,832 857,369 131,154 - 988,523
Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $80,637 391,930 51,304 - 443,234
Bequests 369,823 - — 369,823
Net assets released from restrictions 1,497,063 (1.497.063) - -
Total public support 3,977,768 307,741 13,648 4,299,157
Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies 63,628,203 - - 63,628,203
Other fees and grants 24,013,223 - - 24,013,223
Sales to public 4,019,558 - - 4,019,558
Dividend and interest income 681,151 1,141 - 682,292
Rental income 144,771 - - 144,771
Other 679,263 - - 679.263
Total revenue 93,166,169 1,141 - 93,167,310
Total public support and revenue 97,143,937 308,882 13,648 97,466,467
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education 609,102 - - 609,102
Professional education 41,275 — - 41,275
Direct services 84.342.495 - - 84,342,495
Total program services 84,992,872 - - 84,992,872
Supporting services:
Management and general 9,403,893 - - 9,403,893
Fundraising 1,755,299 - - 1,755,299
Total supporting services 11,159,192 - - 11.159.192
Total functional expenses 96,152,064 - - 96,152,064
Support of National programs 121,780 - - 121,780
Total operating expenses 96,273,844 - - 96.273.844
Increase in net assets from operations 870,093 308,882 13,648 1,192,623



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others

Other nonoperating losses

Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations
Total increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ 2377632 $ - $ - §$ 2,377,632
789,496 24,173 - 813,669
- - 239,436 239,436
(107,120) - - (107,120)
7.392 - - 7.392
3,067,400 24,173 239.436 3,331,009
3,937,493 333,055 253,084 4,523,632
(1.107,544) (6,368) = (1.113.912)
2,829,949 326,687 253,084 3,409,720
11,937,759 598,750 9.901.922  22.438.431

$14,767,708 $__ 925,437 $10,155,006 $25.848.i51
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
(Decrease) increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile (decrease) increase in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Bad debt provision

Increase in fair value of beneficial interest in trusts held by others

Net loss (gain) on sales and disposals of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale and impairment losses

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Net unrealized and realized gains on investments

Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Rate reserve
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale
Cash provided for deconsolidation of affiliate
(Increase) decrease in investments, net
Change in assets limited as to use
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayments on lines of credit
Borrowings on lines of credit
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

10

2014

013

$ (5,689,430) § 3,409,720

1,771,703 1,807,843
265,007 774,569
(574,970) (239,436)
125,346 (283,942)
594,855  (2,377,632)
(1,534,950) (813,669)
5,841,079 -
(94,182) 194,509
818,382 (2,677,707
(20,090) (194,381)
102,454 520,329
81,516 (4,483)
304,390  (1,037,545)
- (435,008)
(61,478) (478,150)
(380,273) 198,799
1,549,359  (1,636,184)
(1,244,361)  (4,859,057)
15,225 531,189
(21,440) -
1,709,413 (444,915)
265.625 375304
724,462  (4,397,479)
(825,393) (750,199)
280,575 3,194,506
(53,526,692)  (27,372,936)
51.512202 29,602,726
(2.559.308) _ 4.674.097
(285,487)  (1,359,566)
3,042,621 4,402,187
$_2,757,134 §__ 3,042,621



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended August 31,2014 and 2013

201 2013

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid $_1,201,000 § 1,119,000

In 2014, Easter Seals NH transferred its sole member interest in a consolidated affiliate to an unrelated party
(see note 12). During 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH transferred property with a net carrying value of
$607,088 and $16,224, respectively, from fixed assets to property held for sale.

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of various separate
nonprofit entities: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (parent and service corporation); Easter Seals New
York, Inc. (Easter Seals NY); Easter Seals Maine, Inc. (Easter Seals ME); Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc.
(Easter Seals RI); Agency Realty, Inc. (real estate corporation); The Harbor Schools Incorporated (Harbor
Schools); Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center; Easter Seals Connecticut, Inc. (Easter Seals
CT); and Easter Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter Seals VT). Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole
member of each subsidiary. Easter Seals NH is affiliated with Easter Seals, Inc. (the national headquarters
for the organization).

On May 22, 2013 the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. voted to dissolve and
transfer the assets and liabilities of Special Transit Services, Inc. to Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

On March 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY, voted to discontinue the Bronx Early
Intervention program. On July 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in
Portland, Maine was transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME
discontinued offering those services. On September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT
voted to discontinue the camp programs and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013. On
January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and cease all
operations of this subsidiary, and also voted to approve discontinuing the group home and special
education programs in Rutland, Vermont. On June 11, 2014, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH
voted to discontinue the Pediatric Outpatient programs located in Manchester and Dover due to significant
losses the programs were experiencing. See also note 13.

In May 2013, the Boards of Directors of Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and Webster Place
voted to merge the two organizations with Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center being the surviving
corporation, having found such merger to be in the best interest of both organizations. The effective date
of the merger was September 1, 2013.

On July 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with The Connecticut Institute for the Blind,
Inc. d/b/a Oak Hill (Oak Hill), an unrelated entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole
member interest in Easter Seals CT to Oak Hill for no consideration. See also note 12.

Easter Seals NH’s purpose is to provide (1) programs and services for people with disabilities and other
special needs, (2) assistance to people with disabilities and their families, (3) assistance to communities
in identifying and developing needed services for residents, and (4) a climate of acceptance for people
with disabilities and other special needs which will enable them to contribute to the well-being of the
community. Easter Seals NH operates programs throughout New Hampshire, New York, Maine,
Massachusetts (prior to the closure of Harbor Schools), Rhode Island, Vermont and Connecticut.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and the
subsidiaries of which it is the sole member. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

12



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Easter Seals NH considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash, overnight repurchase agreements and money
market funds, excluding assets limited as to use.

The management of Easter Seals NH has implemented a practice to establish cash reserves on hand.
Approximately $2,483,000 and $2,432,000, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately
$2,512,000 and $2,238,000, respectively, of investments were on-hand under this practice as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

Assets limited as to use consists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than 90 days, but less than one year, and investments. Investments are stated
at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
The changes in net unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other
nonoperating expenses, gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Easter Seals NH is the beneficiary of several trusts held by others. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an
asset the fair value of its interest in the trusts and such amount is included in permanently restricted net
assets, based on the underlying donor stipulations. The change in the interest due to fair value change is
recorded within other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses as permanently restricted activity.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September 1, 2011 are
recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity.

Donated property and equipment not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as
restricted support or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending resolution of the
uncertainties. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are recorded
as unrestricted support. See also note 5.

Property held for sale is recorded at the lower of net realizable value or carrying value. Easter Seals NH
recognized impairment losses on certain property held for sale in 2014 of $139,698, which is recorded in
other nonoperating losses.

13



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets

Accounting rules require that intangible assets with estimable or determinable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed by
management for impairment. Intangible assets at August 31, 2014 and 2013 consist of a patient list
obtained in the acquisition of Webster Place.

Expected amortization of intangible assets through the end of their useful lives is as follows:

2015 $ 33,130
2016 33,130
2017 33,130
2018 33,130
2019 33,130
Thereafter 66.263

$231,913

Amortization expense recognized for the patient list in 2014 and 2013 totaled $33,130.

When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are impaired
by comparing gross future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the assets to
their carrying amounts. If cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets,
impairment has occurred and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates and
assumptions are required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible impairment.

Based on current facts, estimates and assumptions, management believes that no long-lived assets were
impaired at August 31, 2014 and 2013.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being amortized by the straight-line method over the repayment period of the
related bonds, or the expected time until the next refinancing, whichever is shorter. Amortization expense
recognized during 2014 and 2013 was $9,638.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue generated from services provided to the public is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts
from clients, third-party payors and others based upon approved rates as services are rendered. A
significant portion of Easter Seals NH’s revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors. Assuch, Easter Seals NH is dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating activities.
There is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the
near term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to
be recoverable or payable are included in other fees and grants in the year that such amounts become
known. Easter Seals NY recognized additional revenue of approximately $7,654 in 2014 and $1,046,000
in 2013 due to favorable rate adjustments approved by the State of New York.

14



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A third-party payor for three Easter Seals NY programs charged a facility tax assessment on a monthly
basis in 2014 and 2013. The charges are a part of Easter Seals NY’s reimbursement contract with the
payor. The facility tax assessment is based on approved rates. As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, the
facility tax assessment due was approximately $136,000 and $138,000, respectively, and is recorded in
deferred revenue in the accompanying statements of financial position.

Revenues are recognized as earned, or attributable to the period in which specific terms of the funding
agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred for the purposes specified by
the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts are accounted for as deferred
revenue until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are incurred.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on an analysis by management of the collectibility
of outstanding balances. Management considers the age of outstanding balances and past collection
efforts in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are charged against the allowance
for doubtful accounts when deemed uncollectible. The bad debt provision in 2014 and 2013 totaled
$265,007 and $774,569, respectively.

Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged.

Advertising

Easter Seals NH’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time
records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH’s management.

Charity Care (Unaudited)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as determined
by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered in accordance with decisions made
by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately $6,802,000 and
$7,373,000 for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals NY, Easter Seals ME, Easter Seals VT, Easter Seals RI,
Harbor Schools, Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and Easter Seals CT are exempt from both
federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, for Easter Seals
NY of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York. Agency Realty, Inc. received a
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies for tax-exempt status under
Section 501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.

15



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a tax
position historically taken on various tax exposure items including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected to be taken in
income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold, based
upon the technical merits of the position.

Management has evaluated tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries
on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the organizations have maintained their tax-exempt
status, do not have any significant unrelated business income, and have taken no uncertain tax positions
that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Easter
Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to income tax examinations by the
federal or state tax authorities for years prior to 2011.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Accounting guidance requires that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements described in note 8. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal to
the net amounts receivable under the swap agreements (not the notional amount) in the event of
nonperformance of the other party to the swap agreements. However, Easter Seals NH does not anticipate
nonperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other party.

As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $3,329,813 and
$2,758,346, respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note 8. As a result
of changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments, Easter Seals NH recognized an
decrease in net assets of $571,467 ($23,387 of which is included in deconsolidation of affiliate as an
increase in net assets) for the year ending August 31, 2014, and an increase in net assets of $2,377,632
for the year ending August 31, 2013 related to swap agreements.

Increase in Net Assets from Operations

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the
provision of services are reported as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations. The primary transactions reported as other nonoperating expenses, gains and
losses include the adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps, the increase in the fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others, gains and losses on sales and disposals of property, plant and equipment,
and net realized and unrealized gains on investments.

16



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2013 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
2014 presentation.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by management to determine
whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Management has evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH’s fiscal year end and
December 5, 2014, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Classification of Net Assets

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets
are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Gifts are
reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by
Easter Seals NH has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction
expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements
of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Permanently restricted net
assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by Easter Seals NH in perpetuity, the income from
which is expendable to support all activities of the organization, or as stipulated by the donor.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with UPMIFA, Easter Seals NH considers the following factors in making a determination
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the
fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic
conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of
the organization.

17



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

The major categories of endowment funds at August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Temporarily = Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total

2014

Camping program $ 3,072 § 364869 $ 367,941
Other programs 33,332 353,019 386,351
Operations - 3,613,207  3.613.207
Total endowment net assets $36,404 $4,331,095 $4,367,499
2013

Camping program $ 1,918 $ 363,869 $ 365,787
Other programs 18,913 340,203 359,116
Operations — 3.613.207  3.613.207
Total endowment net assets $20,831 $4,317,279 $4,338,110

Changes in Endowment Net Assets

During the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment-related
activities:

Temporarily = Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2012 $ 16,043 $4,303,631 $4,319,674
Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees 18,777 - 18,777
Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized) 563,208 - 563,208
Contributions - 13,648 13,648
Appropriated for expenditure (577,197) - (577.197)
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2013 20,831 4,317,279 4,338,110
Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees 22,617 - 22,617
Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized) 970,963 - 970,963
Contributions - 13,816 13,816
Appropriated for expenditure (978.007) - (978.007)
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2014 $_36,404 $4,331,095 $4,367,499
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

In addition to endowment net assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Permanently  Total Non-
Temporarily =~ Restricted ~ Endowment
Unrestricted  Restricted (See Note 11) Net Assets

2014

Seniors program $ - $ 23,866 $ - $ 23,866
Veterans program 263,880 9,702 - 273,582
India initiative 104,600 668,198 - 772,798
Other programs - 174,192 - 174,192
Operations 13,820,857 32,500 693.427 14,546,784
Total non-endowment net assets $14,189.337  $908,458 §_693427 $15,791,222
2013

Seniors program $§ 88902 §$ 11,729 $ - $ 100,631
Veterans program -~ 517,035 - 517,035
India initiative - 57,881 - 57,881
Other programs - 285,461 - 285,461
Operations 14.678.806 32.500 5.837.727 20,549,033
Total non-endowment net assets $14,767,708  $904,606 $5.837,727 $21,510,041

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent duration.
Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets. There were no deficiencies between the
fair value of the investments of the endowment funds and the level required by donor stipulation at
August 31,2014 or 2013.

Investment and Spending Policies

Easter Seals NH has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-
restricted funds that Easter Seals NH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is
intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate market index while
assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its endowment funds to provide
an average rate of return over a five year period equal to the rate of 2% over the inflation rate. Actual
returns in any given year may vary from this amount.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to, so long as it would not detract from Easter Seals NH’s critical goals and initiatives,
provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

Leases

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangements which have been classified as operating
leases. Total expense under all leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately $2,420,000
and $2,168,000 for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Some of these leases have
terms which include renewal options, and others may be terminated at Easter Seals NH’s option without
substantial penalty. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at August 31, 2014,
through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements, are as follows:

Year Ended August 31:

2015 $2,018,870
2016 1,486,328
2017 1,044,716
2018 385,129
2019 221,698
Thereafter 31,240

Easter Seals NY leases certain facilities for school operations from unrelated parties at lease terms that
are either below fair market value, or that are almost entirely rent-free. Under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, lease agreements must be evaluated based upon their
economic substance rather than legal form, and a lease subsidy would be recorded as both contribution
and rental expense. However, Easter Seals NH has determined that such amounts would not be material
to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Easter Seals NY subleases certain office space located at 11 West 42™ Street in New York to an unrelated
party. The sublease agreement expires in February 2014. Total rental income earned under this sublease
agreement for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $65,000 and $144,000,
respectively.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 31:

2014 2013
Buildings $ 27,225,674 $ 33,015,085
Land and land improvements 2,696,051 3,494,009
Leasehold improvements 997,631 952,100
Office equipment and furniture 9,679,631 9,917,122
Vehicles 3,250,383 3,225,015
Construction in progress 296.043 216,678

44,145,413 50,820,009
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (19,051.030) (22,753.125)

$.25.094.383  $.28,066,884

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $1,728,935 and $1,765,075 in 2014
and 2013, respectively. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets included within discontinued
operations in 2014 and 2013 totaled $64,351 and $218,670, respectively.

During 2012, Easter Seals NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of approximately
$1,100,000. Under the terms of the donation, for a period of six years, Easter Seals NH must continue to
use the building as a child care center. Should Easter Seals NH cease to operate the program, or wish to
sell or donate the property, Easter Seals NH must first provide the donor with the opportunity to purchase
the property for $1. The contribution representing the fair value of the building has been recorded as
deferred revenue at August 31, 2014 and 2013.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, are as follows at August 31:

014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 523,616 $ 3,513,266
Certificates of deposit - 554,282
Marketable equity securities 1,883,153 2,770,110
Mutual funds 11,634,793 10,992,033
Corporate and foreign bonds 711,063 903,497
Government and agency securities 366,744 631,627

15,119,369 19,364,815
Less: assets limited as to use (1,286.323) (5.100.474)
Total investments, at fair value $£13.833,046 $14,264,341
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

The composition of assets limited as to use at August 31, 2014 and 2013 is set forth in the table shown
below at fair value. The portion of assets limited as to use that is required for obligations classified as
current liabilities is reported in current assets.

2014 2013
Under an agreement with the State of Connecticut, which provides that
the funds be utilized for certain allowable program expenditures:

Cash and cash equivalents $ - $2,310,566
Certificates of deposit - 554,282
Mutual funds - 428,148
Marketable equity securities - 151,573

-~ 3,444,569

Under a deferred compensation plan (see note 7):
Investments 986,277 1,367,127
Maintained in escrow to make required
payments on certain bonds (see note 8):
Cash and cash equivalents 300,046 288.778

Total assets limited as to use $1,286,323 $5,100,474

The principal components of investment income and net realized and unrealized gains included in
continuing operations and other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses are summarized below.

2014 2013
Unrestricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:
Dividend and interest income $ 742,337 $ 681,151
Net unrealized gains 668,363 231,743
Net realized gains 828,601 557,153

2,239,301 1,470,647
Restricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:

Dividend and interest income 3,613 1,141
Net unrealized gains 20,109 7,631
Net realized gains 17.877 16.542

41,599 25314

$2.280,900 $1,495.961
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Retirement Plans

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Employee contributions may be matched by Easter Seals NH as determined in the annual budget.
The combined amount of employer and employee contributions is subject by law to annual maximum
amounts. The employer match was approximately $673,000 and $474,000 for the years ended August 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. offers, to certain management personnel, the option to participate in
an Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may make
a discretionary contribution. The employees’ accounts are not available until termination, retirement,
death or an unforeseeable emergency. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. contributed approximately
$128,000 and $130,000 to this plan during the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
assets and liabilities associated with this plan were $986,277 and $1,367,127 at August 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and are included within assets limited as to use and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following at August 31:
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Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 A, tax exempt, issued through the New

Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA),

with a variable rate determined through weekly remarketing (0.06%

at August 31, 2014) through December 2034, annual principal

payments continually increasing from $400,000 to $1,060,000 with

a final payment of $1,060,000 due December 2034, secured by a

pledge of all gross receipts of Easter Seals NH and certain letters of

credit (see below) $14,275,000 $14,660,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, issued through the Monroe County

Industrial Development Corporation, interest only payments due

through December 2011, after which monthly principal and interest

payments ranging from $10,050 to $21,980 are required through the

maturity date of December 31, 2040. Interest is payable monthly at a

rate equal to 68% of the sum of the monthly LIBOR rate plus 2.65%

(1.91% at August 31,2014) 4,929,360 5,052,360
Mortgage payable to a bank with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 2.65%,

principal of $9,500 plus interest payable monthly, with a final

payment of $2,299,000 due March 2015, secured by all business

assets and property of Easter Seals CT, excluding certain assets

limited as to use (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12). - 2,470,000
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

Non-revolving note payable to a bank with a total availability of
$3,500,000 with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 4.07% (4.23% at
August 31, 2014), interest only payments through June 2014, after
which monthly principal and interest payments are required
through the maturity in June 2015, secured by an interest in certain
property with a net book value of $3,888,720 at August 31, 2014

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $985 payable monthly through April 2018, secured by vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $525 payable monthly through September 2018, secured by
vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 3.66%, principal and interest
of $3,177 payable monthly, due August 2015, secured by vehicles

Unsecured note payable to an individual with a fixed rate of 5.25%,
principal and interest of $10,311 payable monthly, due April 2016

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $2,923 payable monthly through September 2018, secured by
vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $546 payable monthly through January 2019, secured by vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $195 payable monthly through March 2019, secured by vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.24%, principal and interest
of $608 payable monthly through July 2019, secured by vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.24%, principal and interest
of $166 payable monthly through August 2019, secured by vehicles

Less current portion

2014 2013
$ 3,482,580 $ 3,500,000
41,386 52,008
24,449 -
37,353 73,357
197,002 307,232
136,074 -
27,394 -
10,137 -
33,925 -
9.979 -
23,204,639 26,114,957
4,228.339 796.290
$18,976,300 $25,318,667

Principal payments on long-term debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

Lines of Credit and Other Financing Arrangements

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. had an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 nonrevolving equipment
line of credit. The line of credit was used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use
by Easter Seals NH through April 2, 2014. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was ata
fixed rate at the then prime rate minus 0.75% for maturities up to a five-year term. Upon maturity of this
agreement, the balances outstanding under the note payable at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were converted
to various term notes secured by vehicles, as described above.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. also has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 revolving equipment
line, which can be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use by Easter Seals
NH through June 2017. Advances are converted to term notes as utilized. The interest rate charged on
outstanding borrowings is at a fixed rate equal to the then Business Vehicle Rate at the time of the advance
for maturities up to a five year term. Included in long-term debt are two notes payable of $33,925 and
$9,979 at August 31, 2014 that originated under this agreement. Availability under this agreement at
August 31, 2014 is approximately $456,000.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (the sole member of Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools), Easter Seals
NY and Harbor Schools have a revolving line of credit with a bank, with available borrowings up to
$7 million (a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $59,000). Outstanding advances
are due on demand. The revolving line of credit has the following sub-limits which were last amended in
May 2013: Easter Seals NH $3.725 million, Easter Seals NY $3 million and Harbor Schools $275,000.
The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings is at LIBOR plus 2.25% (2.41% at August 31, 2014).
Under an event of default, the interest rate will increase from LIBOR plus 2.25% to LIBOR plus 5.25%.
The line is secured by a first priority interest in all business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.,
Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line
of credit be reduced to $3,500,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. The agreement
also limits each borrower’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of $500,000. Amounts
outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $262,356
and $262,356, respectively, related to Harbor Schools, $1,935,548 and $1,599,505, respectively, related
to Easter Seals NY and $0 and $1,425,875, respectively, related to Easter Seals NH.

Easter Seals CT had a demand revolving line of credit with a bank with available borrowings up to
$1 million. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was at LIBOR plus 2.25%. The line was
secured by all business assets and property of Easter Seals CT, except for certain assets limited as to use
(33,444,569 carrying value as of August 31, 2013). Additionally, this line was guaranteed by Easter Seals
NH. The agreement also limited Easter Seals CT’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of
$1,000,000 related to real estate, and was cross collateralized with all Easter Seals NH borrowings at this
bank. Amounts outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2013 were
$924,658 (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12).
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)
NHHEFA 20044 Revenue Bonds

In connection with the NHHEFA 2004 A Revenue Bonds, Easter Seals NH is required to make deposits
of interest and principal of sufficient amounts to make the required interest payments and to retire the
bonds when due. The 2004A Revenue Bonds require that Easter Seals NH maintain certain reserve funds
with a trustee for current required principal and interest payments. Such amounts, which are included
within assets limited as to use, totaled $300,046 and $288,778 at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
This agreement also requires bank approval prior to Easter Seals NH incurring additional indebtedness.
Easter Seals NH has two letters of credit securing the bonds for $14,450,993 each (expiring and subject
to renewal on March 15, 2015, and mainly to support future principal and interest repayments due under
the 2004 A Revenue Bonds). Easter Seals NH is required to replace or renew the two $14,450,993 letters
of credit upon their expiration or the related bonds may be subject to early redemption. Easter Seals NH
pays an annual fee for the two letters of credit relating to the 2004A NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Fees
incurred on these letters of credit totaled approximately $183,000 and $157,000 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds

On December 1, 2010, Easter Seals NY, in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development
Corporation and RBS Citizens, issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds (the Series
2010 Bonds). The Series 2010 Bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located in
Irondequoit, New York, provide for improvements to a school building and an existing rehabilitation
facility, and construct two residential rehabilitation facilities. Additionally, proceeds were used to
refinance certain Easter Seals NY outstanding debt.

The Series 2010 Bonds are secured by a mortgage on all properties and improvements financed by the
bonds, and are guaranteed by Easter Seals NH. Easter Seals NY may elect to prepay some portion or all
of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee, as defined. This agreement also requires bank
approval prior to Easter Seals NY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010 Bonds are subject
to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1, 2016, and thereafter
every five years through June 1, 2036.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Easter Seals NH has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the Series 2004A
Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement has an outstanding notional amount of $14,275,000 and
$14,660,000 at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which reduces, in conjunction with bond
principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in December 2034. Easter Seals NH remits interest
at the fixed rate of 3.54% and receives interest at a variable rate (0.06% at August 31, 2014).

On February 23, 2011, Easter Seals NY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in
connection with the Series 2010 Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional
amount of $4,929.360 and $5,052,360 at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which reduces, in
conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. Easter Seals
NY remits interest at a fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of monthly
LIBOR).
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

On December 27, 2010, Easter Seals CT entered into an interest rate swap agreement in connection with
an outstanding mortgage payable of $2,470,000 at August 31, 2013. The original notional amount of
$1,800,000 reduces ratably in conjunction with repayment of the note payable. The swap agreement
effectively changed the variable rate to a fixed rate of 2.72% for the notional amounts outstanding, which
is approximately 65% of the related mortgage payable (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12).

The fair value of the above interest rate swap agreements totaled $3,329,813 and $2,758,346 at August 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively, $615,570 and $708,132 of which was current at August 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. During the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 net payments required by the agreements
totaled $674,448 and $692,269, respectively. These payments have been included in interest expense
within the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. See note 11
with respect to fair value determinations.

Debt Covenants

In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter Seals
NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum liquidity
and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31,2014, Easter Seals NH was in compliance with restrictive
covenants specified under the NHHEFA bonds, Series 2010 Bonds, and other debt obligations.

Donated Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time in connection with Easter Seals NH’s program services
and fundraising campaigns. However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to measure the value.

Related Party Transactions

Approximately 13% of other fees and grants revenue is derived from a pass-through grant from Easter
Seals, Inc. for both years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013. Easter Seals NH is a member of Easter Seals,
Inc. As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had a receivable of $334,352 and $247,471,
respectively, from Easter Seals, Inc. related to amounts due under this grant. Easter Seals NH also has an
amount due from Easter Seals CT of $7,301 at August 31, 2014 (see also note 12). Membership fees to
Easter Seals, Inc. were $122,586 and $121,780 for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively and are reflected as support of National programs on the accompanying consolidated
statements of activity and changes in net assets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at their measurement date. In
determining fair value, Easter Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
approaches, and utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These
factors may be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of
unobservable factors.

Certain of Easter Seals NH’s financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial
interest held in trusts, investments and the interest rate swaps, and are classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market
transactions involving identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuations for financial instruments derived from other methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions
and projections in determining fair value.

The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate to valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no changes in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NH at August 31,2014 and
2013.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents are deemed to be Level 1. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds and government and agency securities that are based upon quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets are reflected as Level 1. Investments in certain other mutual funds
and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are transparent and generally are based upon quoted
prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and reflected as Level 2. Investments in
certificates of deposit are at cost plus accrued interest, which is estimated to approximate fair value and
are included in Level 2.
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August 31,2014 and 2013

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Beneficial Interest in Trusts Held by Others

The beneficial interest in trusts held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair value
levels of the underlying investments within the trusts. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds, government and agency securities and other asset funds are based upon
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and are reflected as Level 1. Investments in marketable
equity securities, mutual funds and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are transparent and
generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and
reflected as Level 2. Investments in alternative and other asset funds are derived from other
methodologies, including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques,
and not based on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions, and are reflected as Level 3.
Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining fair value,

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The fair value for the interest rate swap liabilities is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the
counterparty using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and
discount the future amounts to present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest
rates.

At August 31,2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were classified as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2014
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 523616 § - $ - $ 523,616

Marketable equity securities: ‘
Large-cap 1,238,248 - - 1,238,248
International 644,905 - - 644,905

Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income 3,562,348 - - 3,562,348
Intermediate-term bond fund 824,376 - - 824,376
High yield bond fund 264,363 - - 264,363
Foreign bond 14,168 - - 14,168
Government securities 752,030 - - 752,030
International equities 784,490 - - 784,490
Domestic, large-cap 1,500,128 - - 1,500,128
Domestic, mid-cap 147,920 - - 147,920
Domestic, small-cap 3,480 - - 3,480
Domestic, Multi Alt 112,233 - - 112,233
Real estate fund 128,303 - - 128,303
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity
Corporate and foreign bonds
Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Small-cap
International
Emerging markets
Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income
International fixed income
Commodity
Real estate investment trust

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

2013
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
International
Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income
Intermediate-term bond fund
High yield bond fund
Foreign bond
Government securities
International equities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 2,510,846 $ — - $ 2,510,846
508,556 - - 508,556
193,682 - - 193,682
326,879 - - 326,879
991 - - 991
- 711,063 — 711,063
366,744 - - 366.744
$14,408,306 $_711,063 - $15,119,369
$ 16,172  $ - - $ 16,172
225,799 57,705 - 283,504
- 33,685 - 33,685
- 72,307 - 72,307
46,695 — - 46,695
- 133,076 - 133,076
30,821 - - 30,821
42,050 - — 42,050
35,117 — — 35.117
§__396,654 $_296,773 = §_693.427
$ - $ = $3,329,813 $_3,329,813
$ 3,513,266 $ - - $ 3,513,266
— 554,282 - 554,282
2,550,313 - - 2,550,313
219,797 - - 219,797
3,304,368 - ~ 3,304,368
543,938 - - 543,938
274,582 - — 274,582
210,342 - — 210,342
511,971 - - 511,971
693,837 - - 693,837
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
Real estate fund

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Fixed income and bond
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity

Corporate and foreign bonds

Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Mid-cap
Small-cap
International
Emerging markets

Corporate bonds

Foreign bonds

Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income
International equity
International fixed income
Domestic large-cap equity
Domestic mid-cap equity
Domestic small-cap equity
Commodity

Government and agency securities

Real estate investment trust

Alternative and structured asset funds

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 816,851 § - $ - $ 816,851
369,532 - - 369,532
237,828 - - 237,828
3,868 - - 3,868
427,663 - - 427,663
2,002,955 - - 2,002,955
493,556 — - 493,556
913,054 - - 913,054
173,305 - - 173,305
14,383 - - 14,383
- 903,497 - 903,497
631,627 - - 631,627
$17,907,036 $1,457.779 $ - $19,364,815
$ 4,555 § - $ - $ 4,555
2,544,889 148,594 - 2,693,483
809,286 45,600 - 854,886
- 33,110 - 33,110
319,796 40,369 - 360,165
118,842 - - 118,842
- 709,131 - 709,131
- 6,029 - 6,029
- 654,361 - 654,361
34,664 - - 34,664
19,931 - - 19,931
67,476 - - 67,476
16,984 - - 16,984
20,565 - - 20,565
5,465 - - 5,465
20,202 - - 20,202
95,123 - - 95,123
33921 — 88.834 122,755
$.4,111,699 $1.637,194 $__88.834 §$_5,837.727
$ - 3 = $2,758346 $.2,758346

31



11.

12.

EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of Easter Seals NH’s Level 3 assets and
liabilities for the years ended August 31,2014 and 2013:

Alternative
Interest and Other
Rate Swaps  Asset Funds

Beginning balance, August 31, 2012 $(5,135,978) § 78,614
Unrealized gains, net 2,377,632 10,220
Ending balance, August 31,2013 (2,758,346) 88,834
Unrealized loss, net (594,854) -
Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12 23,387 (88.834)
Ending balance, August 31, 2014 $(3,329.813) $___ -

Excluding the impact of the deconsolidation of an affiliate (see note 12), the net amounts of unrealized
gains (losses) for the period attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to the interest
rate swaps still held at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $(594,854) and $2,377,632, respectively. The
amount of unrealized gains for the period attributable to the change in unrealized gains relating to the
Level 3 investments still held at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $0 and $10,220, respectively.

Easter Seals NH’s other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
from affiliates, program and other accounts receivable, contributions receivable, accounts payable, lines
of credit, and long-term debt, have fair values approximating their carrying values because of the short-
term nature of the financial instruments or because interest rates approximate current market rates.

Deconsolidation of Related Entity

On July 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with The Connecticut Institute for the Blind,
Inc. d/b/a Oak Hill (Oak Hill), an unrelated entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole
member interest in Easter Seals CT to Oak Hill for no consideration. Accordingly, all of the assets,
liabilities and net assets of Easter Seals CT were transferred to Oak Hill effective July 31, 2014. Easter
Seals NH was concurrently released from all guarantees and other obligations related to Easter Seals CT.
Easter Seals NH recognized a decrease in net assets of $5,841,079 as a result of the deconsolidation of
Easter Seals CT. The accompanying 2014 consolidated financial statements include the operating results
of Easter Seals CT for the period from September 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014 and the year ended
August 31, 2013.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

12. Deconsolidation of Related Entity (Continued)

Summary statements of financial position and activities of Easter Seals CT for the period ended July 31,
2014 and year ended August 31, 2013 follow:

July 31,
2014 August 31,
(Unaudited) 2013
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $§ 21,440 § 270,732
Program and other accounts receivable, net 18,572 283,994
Assets limited as to use 3,548,526 3,444,569
Investments, at fair value 256,832 1,699,874
Beneficial interest in trust held by others 5,719,267 5,207,585
Fixed assets 1,879,966 1,919,988
Other assets 24,828 108,708
Total assets 11,469,431 12,935,450
Liabilities and net assets:
Line of credit - (924,658)
Deferred revenue (3,138,717)  (3,456,204)
Long-term debt (2,365,500) (2,470,000)
Other liabilities (124,135) (731.465)
Total liabilities (5,628.352) (7.582.327)
Total net assets $.5,841,079 $_5,353,123
11-Month

Period Ended Year Ended
July 31,2014 August 31,2013

Total public support and revenue $1,027,556 $ 1,298,832
Total operating expenses (856,861) (1,048,542)
Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses 778,724 361,524
Increase in net assets before discontinued operations $_949419 §__611.8]4

Losses from discontinued operations within Easter Seals CT for the eleven month period ended July 31,
2014 and year ended August 31, 2103 were $454,230 and $657,561, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

13. Discontinued Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include various programs and entities that are
reported as discontinued operations, as follows:

e  On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. voted to approve
discontinuing the group home and special education programs in Rutland, Vermont.

e  On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and
cease all operations of this subsidiary.

e On March 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY voted to discontinue the Bronx Early
Intervention program.

e On May 2, 2014 the Sayville program in NY was discontinued as a license was not able to be
obtained.

e On July 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in Portland, Maine was
transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME discontinued offering those
services. On October 17, 2013, the Maine Board of Directors voted to close the Maine Vocational
programs.

e  On September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT voted to discontinue the camp
programs and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013.

e  On June 11, 2014, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to discontinue the Pediatric
Outpatient programs located in Manchester and Dover due to significant losses the programs were
experiencing.

The management of Easter Seals NH has determined that the closure of each of these programs/entities
met the criteria for classification as discontinued operations. The decisions to close the programs/entities
were based on performance factors.

Summary statements of financial position for each of the above discontinued programs/entities as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Vermont Harbor Schools New York
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total assets $ - $§ - $878,144 § 872,744 § 32,929 $51,896
Total liabilities — 1,197 648,892 595,053 44511 9,289
Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted - (1,197) 180,556 230,951 (11,582) 42,607
Temporarily restricted - - 24,870 22,914 - -
Permanently restricted - - 23,826 23,826 - -
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Maine Connecticut New Hampshire
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total assets $ 85 $1888 § - $2,119,068 $800,810 $ -
Total liabilities - 38 - 2,470,000 31,783 29,592
Net assets (deficit):

Unrestricted 825 1,850 - (350,932) 769,027 (29,592)

Summary statements of activities for each of the above discontinued programs/entities for the years ended
August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Vermont Harbor Schools New York
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total public support
and revenue $ - - 0§ 22127 $ 12,907 $ - $ 320,825
Operating expenses - (20,310) (70,891) (329,961) (192,456) (628,465)
Other nonoperating
expense, gains
or losses - - 830 (1,469) - -
Gain on sale of
properties, net - — - 291,788 - -
Total decrease in
net assets $ ~_  $.(20310) $_(47.934) $_ (26,735) $_(192.456) $(307,640)
Maine Connecticut New Hampshire
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total public
support and
revenue $ 4,667 § 210,588 § 57,166 $ 774,143 $ 1,276,909 $ 1,996,997

Operating expenses  (42,262) (324,009) (511,596) (1,431,704) (2,018,853) (1,970,004)
Gain (loss) on sale
of properties, net - 325 200 -~ — (15,563)

Total increase
(decrease) in

net assets $37.595) $(113,096) $(454.230) $_(657,561) $_(741.944) $__ 11,430

During 2013 Easter Seals NH sold two properties related to the closure of certain programs, which
resulted in net gains on the sales of property of $276,550.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

14. Concentrations

Easter Seals NH maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed amounts guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Financial instruments which
subject Easter Seals to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and investments. Easter Seals’
investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. Investments
that exceeded 10% of investments include the “Lord Abbett Short Duration Income A Fund” as of
August 31, 2014.
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